
If you require hearing interpreters, language interpreters, auxiliary aids in order to attend and 
participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator's offices at (575) 887-1191 at 
least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 
 

 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  

 
Monday, November 7, 2016, at 5:00 PM 

Municipal Building 101 N. Halagueno Street 
Planning Room (Second Floor) 

 

 

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum. 

2. Approval of Agenda.  

3. Approval of Minutes from meeting held October 3, 2016. 

4. Update and Presentation for Montclair Development (formerly El Dorado). 

5. Consider an Appeal (variance) to allow a carport in the front set-back at 712 N. 12th St. 

6. Consider an Appeal (variance) to allow a carport in the front set-back at 3317 Kuykendall St. 

7. Consider an Infrastructure Reimbursement Request for Brian Stevens concerning the RV 
Park located at 900 Standpipe Rd. 

8. Consider a Motion to appoint as Commission Designee the Director and Deputy Director of 
Planning for the purpose of signing Summary Review Plats. 

9. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions. 

10. Adjourn. 

 

1

1



Agenda Item #1: Roll Call of Voting Members and determination of Quorum 

2

2



Agenda Item #3: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting  

3

3



 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

 

City of Carlsbad 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

October 3, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Held in the Planning Room 

 

 

 
 

4

4



 

 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION  

 
Monday, October 3, 2016, at 5:00 PM 

Municipal Building 101 N. Halagueno Street 
Planning Room (Second Floor) 

 

 

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum. 

2. Approval of Agenda.  

3. Approval of Minutes from meeting held August1, 2016. 

4. Approval of Minutes from Meeting held on September 12, 2016. 

5. Consider a recommendation for a Zone Change at 502 N. 6th St. from “R-1” Residential 
to “C-2” Commercial. 

6. Consider a recommendation for a Zone Change at 612 W. Pierce St. from “R-2” 
Residential to “C-2” Commercial. 

7. Consider an Appeal (variance) to allow a carport in the front set-back at 1305 Normandy 
St. 

8. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions. 

9. Adjourn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
If you require hearing interpreters, language interpreters, auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate in the above meeting, 

please contact the City Administrator's offices at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

5

5



 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD PLANNING & 

ZONING COMMISSION HELD IN THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING PLANNING ROOM, 101 N. 

HALAGUENO STREET, OCTOBER 3, 2016, AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:    

 JAMES KNOTT  CHAIRPERSON  

 LASON BARNEY COMMISSIONER 

 BRIGIDO GARCIA COMMISSIONER  

                          WANDA DURHAM COMMISSIONER 

     

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT:   

 JAMES MCCORMICK COMMISSION SECRETARY 

   

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS PRESENT:  

 JEFF PATTERSON PLANNING DIRECTOR 

 GEORGIA GOAD PLANNING DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

  

SECRETARY PRESENT: 

 JENNIFER CAMPOS PLANNING, ENGINEERING 

 AND REGULATION DEPARTMENT 

 EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 

OTHERS PRESENT:   

 IRENE ROBERTS  616 W. PIERCE 

 EDDIE HERNANDEZ 505 N. 6
TH

 

 DAVID LEWIS  1305 NORMANDY 

 GEORGE WHEELER 612 W. PIERCE 

 MIKE HUBER  502 N. 6
TH

 

 PRISCILLA MARTINEZ 502 DEL RIO ST. 

 MICHAEL MARTINEZ 1304 NORMANDY 

 SHANNON SUMMERS 600-2 CASCADES AVE. 

 ELODIA ENRIQUEZ 518 N. 6
TH

 

 JOISY ENRIQUEZ  518 N. 6TH 

   

    

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is hereby made a 

part of the official record. 

 

0:00:00 Start Recording [5:05:15 PM] 

 

0:00:06 1. Roll call of Voting Members and Determination of Quorum.    

 

Roll was called, confirming the presence of a quorum of commission members.  Present – Ms. Durham, 

Mr. Knott, Mr. Barney, Mr. Garcia; Absent – Mr. McCormick. 

 

 

0:00:28 2. Approval of Agenda.  

 

Ms. Goad mentions that item #5 on the Agenda itself is correct, but the application and the Agenda 

Briefing Memorandum for that item has to be amended.  The applicant needs to apply from “R-1” to “C-

2” as the Agenda states. 

6

6



 

Ms. Durham made a motion to approve the Agenda with the amendment, and Mr. Barney seconded the 

motion.   The vote was as follows:  Yes – Ms. Durham, Mr. Knott, Mr. Barney, Mr. Garcia; No – 

None; Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. McCormick.  The motion carried.  

 

0:01:39 3.        Approval of Minutes from meeting held August 1, 2016. 

 

Ms. Durham made a motion to approve the Minutes held on August 1, 206, and Mr. Barney seconded 

the motion.   The vote was as follows:  Yes – Ms. Durham, Mr. Knott, Mr. Barney, Mr. Garcia; No – 

None; Abstained – None; Absent –Mr. McCormick.  The motion carried.  

  

  

0:02:12 4.        Approval of Minutes from Meeting held on September 12, 2016. 

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve the Minutes held on September 12, 2016, and Ms. Durham 

seconded the motion.   The vote was as follows:  Yes – Ms. Durham, Mr. Knott, Mr. Barney, Mr. 

Garcia; No – None; Abstained – None; Absent –Mr. McCormick.  The motion carried.  

 

 

0:02:52 5.        Consider a recommendation for a Zone Change at 502 N. 6th St. from "R-1" 

Residential to "C-2" Commercial. 

 

Ms. Goad mentions that the applicant is applying for a Zone Change from “R-1” to “C-2” the planning 

staff recommended denial because it’s a spot zone.  However, the applicant has brought a couple of letter 

that he would like to read and she has copies of the letters the area where the building sits historically has 

had commercial enterprises on it mixed with some residential the blanket zoning there is residential in 

nature but the building was obviously built for commercial purposes it’s been there for many, many years 

used a commercial type use and it has no other use and it could not be possibly be used for residential. It’s 

one of those that got caught up on the new zoning map where there are mixed uses there also there are 

vacant lots.  The school down the street is closed now.  Mr. Patterson mentions on the synopsis that he 

included the Greater Carlsbad Comprehensive Plan Strategy 2030, in Chapter 3 Land Use, Section D: 

Goals and Policies, part of the strategy mentioned is to encourage a mix of land uses in the same area so 

that residents are within walking distance of some commercial and retail businesses (Ch.3, Sec. D, Goal 

1, Strategy C).  There is a lot of traffic going down 6
th
 Street it would be considered as a side street as 

residential street.  If the applicant was asking for “C-1” Commercial the Planning Staff would be in full 

support we’ve talked about this before when you change the zoning to whatever you change it to then 

anything that is allowed in the zoning is allowed.  The applicant is here to explain what he desires to do.  

The Comprehensive Plan does talk about spot zoning and wants the City to avoid that in most cases this 

could be a good spot to try some commercial around some residential but we need to be mindful if that’s 

going to be allowed later on down the road.  Mr. Barney asked why did you said it may be considered 

more considerable for “C-1” what’s the difference.  Mr. Patterson said “C-1” commercial is intended for 

Commercial in retail more neighborhood scale like dentist offices, doctors’ offices some retail might fit.  

Our “C-2” Zoning is more for our regional commercial the large commercial with more intent uses.  What 

the applicant wants to do is not allowed in “C-1” it’s only allowed in “C-2”.  On page 15 in the packet it 

talks about the criteria that your supposed to look at for zone change on part (g) the proposed amendment 

is justified in order to correct a mistake in the Official Zoning Map or the text of the Zoning Ordinance 

you can look at that zoning has been misapplied.  Ms. Goad said that there are provisions in the Zoning 

Ordinance as well that addresses beneficial uses of a property.  Mr. Huber said he’s been in business for 

35 years doing automotive, security installation repairs since 1991.  Through the years he’s made 

repeating customers who depend on his services.  With rental prices high he’s been friends with Brian 

Stevens for years he who owns the property on 502 N. 6
th
 Street and let him use the property rent free 

until he gets the proper permits up to code.  He’s willing to work with the neighbors to keep the noise 

down.  Mr. Barney asked how big the lot is.  Ms. Goad said it was 100’ x 150’.  Mr. Knott asked if he 

7

7



 

was only going to utilize 50’ but we’re zoning the entire lot.  Mr. Huber said “yes”.   Mr. Huber read 

out loud two letters from his customers that was handed out at the meeting, the first letter was from 

Deanna Weston-Helmer and the second letter was from Jeff Yeager.  Ms. Martinez said she is a 

customer of Mr. Huber and she’s for the zone change hoping that he can keep his business going and he’s 

put a lot of money into the property and he’s a good person.  Mr. Hernandez said he lives across the 

street from the building and he’s against for the zone change.  The actual owner already has a business on 

Standpipe Road and he’s afraid that the business will be moving toward 6
th
 Street.  His neighbor behind 

him has problems with his sewer line going that goes to the main line.  Getting heavy equipment going 

through there and we already have the trash trucks picking up our garage with the rollouts that we have 

now.  Ms. Elodia Enriquez and Ms. Joisy Enriquez they bought the property at 518 N. 6
th
 about 14 

years ago and since then the property that Mr. Huber wants to do business has been abandoned for years 

someone does keep the property mowed and clean, but no business has been there.  Her main concern is 

that two family members are day sleepers because they work at night and the noise is going to be 

affecting them.  Also, my daughter Joisy Enriquez has migraines with the noise and it gets bad for her.  

She’s against the zone change she would like to keep it the way it is.  We have a german shepard dog and 

we have a 6’ fence and they had to put two hot wires to keep the dog inside the fence because of the noise 

the dog has been jumping the fence.  Mr. Knott said if this stayed “R-2” they can have multi-family 

housing.  Mr. Patterson mentions all that is allowed to multi-family and some of these could go with a 

conditional use.  Mr. Garcia asked how many employees he had.  Mr. Huber said he had one mechanic.  

Mr. Garcia asked if most of his work be inside the building.  Mr. Huber said “yes”.      

 

Mr. Knott made a motion to approve the Zone Change at 502 N. 6th St. from "R-1" Residential to "C-2" 

Commercial.   Mr. Garcia seconded the motion.   The vote was as follows:  Yes, Mr. Knott, Mr. 

Garcia; No – Ms. Durham, Mr. Barney.  Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. McCormick.   

 

Ms. Durham commented to Mr. Huber as to if this Zone Change gets approve and something happens to 

him or Mr. Stevens being the owner then there’s no changing this property what’s done is done and she 

wants City Council to make sure that is what they want in that area for the future. 

 

Mr. Knott said that this is a split vote and they would like to carry it onto City Council. 

 

  

 0:43:50 6.        Consider a recommendation for a Zone Change at 612 W. Pierce St. from "R-

2" Residential to "C-2" Commercial. 

 

Mr. Patterson mentions Zoning Change from “R-2” Residential District to “C-2” Commercial District 

for Lot 8, Block 181, Westfall Subdivision, located at 612 W. Pierce St., pursuant to Section 3-21-1 et. 

Seq. NMSA 1978 and Sections 56-150(b) and 56-140(i), Carlsbad Code of Ordinances.  Looking on page 

43 on the packet the properties along West Pierce Street the majority of them are converted residences 

that now operate commercial business and this is technically not a spot zone.  The applicant is asking for 

“C-2” commercial to follow the suite all along down West Pierce Street.  The Planning Department has 

recommended approval for this request.  Mr. Wheeler said he purchased this building about 20 years ago 

from Dr. Brown and he’s not sure how long he was in the building.  He said at the moment he doesn’t 

have plans but he did want to follow suite on West Pierce Street.  Ms. Goad said that Mr. Wheeler is in 

the same position as Dr. Murray that if he makes decision to sell or lease the property it has to be zoned 

correctly for that type of use.   

 

Looking on page 43 on the map of the packet their talking about who’s in those lots.   

 

Mr. Knott mentions in case of a fire and have a total loss on the property with the current zoning on all 

of the lots you would not able to rebuilding with a commercial building permit.  Ms. Goad agreed.  Mr. 

Wheeler said he didn’t realize that and he asked when he purchased this has it always been zoned like 

8

8



 

this.  Ms. Goad said she didn’t know what the prior zoning was but the current zoning was passed in 

2011.  Ms. Roberts said when she bought her house in 1974 it was all residential except for Dr. Murray 

on one end and Dr. Madry on the other end and since then it has grown so much.     

 

Mr. Barney made a motion to approve Zone Change at 612 W. Pierce St. from "R-2" Residential to "C-

2" Commercial.  Mr. Garcia seconded the motion.   The vote was as follows:  Yes – Ms. Durham, Mr. 

Knott, Mr. Barney, Mr. Garcia; No – None; Abstained – None; Absent – Mr. McCormick.  The 

motion carried. 

 

 

0:52:35  7.        Consider an Appeal (variance) to allow a carport in the front set-back at 1305 

Normandy St. 

 

Mr. Patterson mentions this is an Appeal (variance) from Section 56-90(b) to allow a front-yard setback 

variance of 13’ from the north side property line, which would result in an 17’ front-yard setback at 1305 

Normandy St., zoned R-1. (Looking at the table on page 44 on the packet) It shows the setback 

requirements for each zoning as you can see on “R-1” normally there is a 30’ front setback for properties 

zone “R-1” slash 15’ with a star (*) means when you look at a block the majority of the houses are less 

than 30’ or majority of the front setbacks are less than 30’ it reverse to a 15’ front setback so that’s what it 

means.  If you look on page 45 on the impact it talks about the reason why we have setbacks, also if you 

look on page 58 in the packet on the applicant’s property Mr. Lewis also drew a diagram on page 49.  Mr. 

Lewis’s setback is quite a ways beyond 30’ from the front of his property, so placing a carport 21’ long it 

will diminish the front setback and the goals of the setback but it will not eliminate it.  The Planning Staff 

recommends approval of this request provided the applicant meets the entire carport criteria stated in the 

Zoning Ordinance. A building permit will be required prior to construction.  Mr. Knott asked if they 

have to be concerned about drainage.  Mr. Patterson said it says in the zoning ordinance that you have to 

control of any water runoff.  Mr. Lewis said what his plan is to use the pre fab metal but rather to leaving 

the support post he wants to frame it all in and stucco it to match the house.  He doesn’t want to detract 

from the neighborhood he wants to improve his property value.   He wants to protect his investments with 

his vehicles and he takes pride on anything he owns and maintains it well.  Mr. Martinez said he lives at 

1304 Normandy right across the street from Mr. Lewis and he just admires his house Mr. Lewis does take 

pride on his property and he’s for Mr. Lewis for this getting this approved.  Hopefully someday he could 

do the same on applying for the same application to protect his investments.  Mr. Lewis said he’s lived 

there for 18 years there was a garage at one time when he moved it was completely closed in.  Mr. 

Garcia asked what the side setback that the carport will have.  Mr. Patterson said it will be 5’.  Mr. 

Lewis said the way he has it laid out it will be pretty close to that.   

 

Mr. Garcia made a motion to recommend approval to consider an Appeal (variance) to allow a carport in 

the front set-back at 1305 Normandy St. and Ms. Durham seconded the motion.   The vote was as 

follows:  Yes – Ms. Durham, Mr. Knott, Mr. Barney, Mr. Garcia; No – None; Abstained – None; 

Absent – Mr. McCormick.  The motion carried. 

 

 

1:06:43  8.        Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions. 

 

There were no Reports regarding Summary Review.  

  

1:06:55  9.        Adjourn. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

9

9



 

1:07:00 Stop Recording [6:12:15 PM]  

 

 

 

_____________________________________  ______________ 
      Chairman                     Date  

10

10



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

                                        Meeting Date: 11/7/16 
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering and Regulation  

BY: Jeff Patterson, Planning 
Director 

DATE: 10/17/16 
  

SUBJECT: Update and presentation of the new Concept Plan for the Montclair Development (formerly El 
Dorado), PUD, an approximately 1,300 acre area, containing multiple parcels, located on the east side of 
National Parks Highway between Derrick Road and the south line of Township 23S Range 26E Section 14, 
annexation pending, pursuant to the petition method as provided for in Section 3-7-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978 
(specifically, Section 3-7-17). 
 
Applicants: 
Property Owner (Majority Land Owner): 
Hermes Development, LLC 
7641 E. Gray Rd., Suite B1 
Scottsdale, AZ 85260 
 
Agent: 
Gary Lane 
LBG Development, LLC. 
1256 W. Chandler Blvd. Ste. H 
Chandler, AZ 85224 
 
SYNOPSIS and HISTORY: The applicant is presenting a revised Concept Plan for the renamed Montclair 
Development, (formerly the El Dorado Development), the approximately 1,300 acre development on the 
eastern side of National Parks Hwy. south of Carlsbad. The applicant previously petitioned for this property to 
be annexed and Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning requested at the May 27, 2014 City Council 
meeting (Ordinance 2014-09 and Ordinance 2014-10). At the time, the applicant presented a Concept Plan 
with this annexation request, as required by the City’s Zoning Ordinance for the application of PUD zoning. 
The applicant then had one year to complete the Final PUD and development plans, as well as enter into a 
Development Agreement with the City. The applicant has needed to extend that one year deadline twice, with 
the last extension being granted by the Planning and Zoning Commission at the July 11, 2016 Commission 
meeting. The applicant and their agent, Gary Lane, stated at that Commission meeting that they planned to 
revise the previously accepted Concept Plan, and when the revised Concept Plan was ready, they would 
bring it back and present the revised plan to the Planning and Zoning Commission as well as the City 
Council. The attached documents in this packet constitute that new plan. Once the new Concept Plan is 
approved, the applicants and their agent will proceed with the creation of the Final PUD Development Plan 
and the Development Agreement. Also included in this packet are the annexation plats showing what 
property will be annexed, the previous Concept Plan map, and a cover letter from Consensus Planning to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission that provides more details about the project. 

According to Sec. 56-150 (j): 

“The purpose of the PUD review is to provide a process for reviewing applications for self-contained 
developments a minimum of ten (10) acres in size, with a range of residential densities and/or a mix of 
residential and non-residential uses, and to allow for more innovative and efficient layout and design of such 
projects than would be possible through strict application of other zoning districts.” 

“A PUD is approved in two steps.  The first step involves review and approval of a zoning change application 
to the PUD zoning district with an accompanying Concept Plan.  The second step involves review and 
approval of a Final PUD Plan for the development, and subdivision, in accordance with the City’s Subdivision 
Regulations, if necessary.  Applications for subdivision approval may be filed simultaneously with the PUD 
zoning change application; however, preliminary subdivision approval is contingent upon approval of the PUD 
zoning designation.” 

11

11



    

IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.): By 
recommending approval of the new Concept Plan, the Planning and Zoning Commission would be 
supporting the efforts of the developer to move further along in the PUD process and move closer to the 
submission of the Final PUD Plan and Development Agreement.  

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Department recommends approval of the new 
Concept Plan. 

 
 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval Denial n/a  Approval Denial n/a 
Public Works    Plng., Eng. & Reg. Dept:    
Fire Department        Code Enforcement Division         
Legal Department      Engineering Division    
Police Department    Planning Division  x  
Utilities Department    Building & Regulation Division    
Culture & Rec. Dept.        
        

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  

Public Works:  
 
Utilities Department: 
  
Building Department:  
 
Fire Department:  
  
Code Enforcement:  
 
Legal Department:. 
   
Planning Department: Recommend approval. 
 
Police Department:  
 
Culture & Recreation  
 
City Engineer:   

ATTACHMENTS: Concept plan maps, annexation map and ordinances. 
  

12

12



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-__ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING A PORTION OF LAND 
CONTAINING 1 , 3 0 0  ACRES MORE OR LESS, 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW 
MEXICO, LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF 
NATIONAL PARKS HIGHWAY BETWEEN 
DERRICK ROAD AND THE SOUTH LINE OF 
TOWNSHIP 23S RANGE 26E SECTION 14, 
PURSUANT TO THE PETITION METHOD 
PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 3-7-1 ET. SEQ., 
NMSA 1978.  

 

WHEREAS, a  petition for annexation of territory contiguous to the City of Carlsbad 
has been presented to the Governing Body of the City of Carlsbad, and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been signed by the owners of a majority of the number of 
acres in the contiguous territory, and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition is accompanied by a map showing the external boundary 
of the territory proposed to be annexed and its relationship to the existing boundary of the City 
of Carlsbad, New Mexico. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO: 
 

Section 1.      Subject to the proviso contained in Section 2 hereof, the City of 
Carlsbad hereby consents to the annexation of 1 ,300  acres, more or less, of contiguous 
territory situated in Eddy County, New Mexico, located on the east side of National 
Parks Highway between Derrick Road and the south line of Township 23S 
Range 26E Section 14, as illustrated on the annexation plat attached hereto. 

 

Section 2.        A copy of this ordinance and the plat of said property shall be filed 
in the office of the County Clerk of Eddy County. After such filing, the property shall be 
included in and be a part of the City of Carlsbad.  Appeal may be made by any person owning 
land within this said territory to the District Court of Eddy County within thirty (30) days on 
the grounds and in the manner provided by law. 

 
INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED THIS 27TH   DAY OF MAY, 
2014. 
 

____________________________ 
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 

13

13

Operator
Typewritten Text

Operator
Typewritten Text

Operator
Typewritten Text
09

Operator
Typewritten Text

Operator
Typewritten Text

Operator
Typewritten Text
/s/ Dale Janway

Operator
Typewritten Text
/s/ Annette Barrick

Operator
Typewritten Text



14

14

Operator
Typewritten Text
10

Operator
Typewritten Text
/s/ Dale Janway

Operator
Typewritten Text
/s/ Annette Barrick



15

15



16

16



I and~l':t pc Ar.-hitectll rl' 

llrhn 11 Dc>i!!n 
Pl.tnni ng Sl't\·kcs 

't~~ h~lt tlt :; t ~\X' 
.'\lhuqu,· rqu,·, ~\1 Hi' 102 

( 'it~'i) 7tl-J.<Jil\~l 

l·.tx '~·i 2 )·! "~ 

October 14, 2016 

James Knott, Chairman 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
City of Carlsbad 
114 S. Halagueno Street, 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220 

RE: Montclair Planned Unit Development, Carlsbad 

Dear Chairman Knott, 

DEVELOPMENT, L . L . C. 

The purpose of this letter is to request approval of a revised Concept Plan for the 
approximately 1 ,300 - acre property known as the Montclair Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), previously known as the ElDorado PUD. The subject site is 
located on the east side of National Parks Highway between Derrick Road and 
the south line of Township 23S Range 26E Section 14, east of the Cavern City 
Air Terminal. 

""'"'·····n"''N"PI.tnntn~:.n•m Project History 

PR INCIPA I.S 

/wnn K. Stro~lcr, 1\/Cl' 
Chns!O/>ht:r ). ( lr.:cn, I' LA. 

1\SLt\ , /.EED 1\P 
Jacqurltn~ Fllhnwn. A/CP 
Lmm~ Fn·or, PLA 1\SL,\ 

In May 2014, the City of Carlsbad City Council approved the annexation, the 
Concept Plan, and the establishment of the PUD zoning for the subject site. This 

Concept Plan revises the previously approved Concept Plan. The final approval 
of the annexation is subject to approval of a Final PUD and a Development 
Agreement. 

Project Need 
Carlsbad is a growing and thriving community, and the mix of land uses in the 
revised Concept Plan are designed to better meet the needs of the Carlsbad 
market place. As oil and gas activity increases, the proposed industrial and 
business park uses provide a significant opportunity for Carlsbad to continue to 
build and strengthen its role as a hub of oil and gas and other extractive 
industries, as well as space to diversify its economy, while increasing 
employment. 

The proposed mix of residential uses reflects the diverse housing needs of 
Carlsbad. According to the City of Carlsbad Housing Analysis and Strategic Plan 
Update (2015), Carlsbad needs at least 600 new homes, and 1 ,650 new 
multifamily units. The plan also shows that there is a need for both for-sale and 
rental housing, at both market rate and workforce levels. A water use and census 

study by the Carlsbad Department of Development puts the Greater Carlsbad 
area population at approximately 70,000. According to the US Census, between 
2000 and 2014, the portion of the population in Eddy County (of which Carlsbad 
is 50% of the population, according to the US Census) that grew the fastest was 
the 60 to 64 years cohort, which increased 75.3%. With an aging population and 

Carlsbad's recognition as an Age Friendly Community (by the World Health 

Montclair Planned Unit Development Page 1 

17

17



<..9 
z 
z 
z 
<( 
...J 
Cl. 

Organization), Carlsbad has a significant need for senior housing at all levels of 
care. The proposed Age-Restricted Housing will address a range of needs from 
Independent Living through to Memory Care, per the AARP's Continuing Care 
Retirement Communities model. 

The proposed commercial development increases employment while also 
providing more retail, restaurant, and service opportunities that serve the 
Carlsbad community, as well as development that serves the many tourists that 
travel to and through Carlsbad. 

Policy Support 
The revised Concept Plan shows a mix of land uses that reflect the needs of the 
Carlsbad market, and are supported by City of Carlsbad adopted plans and 
policies, including the City of Carlsbad Housing Analysis and Strategic Plan 
Update (September 2015), the Greater Carlsbad Comprehensive Plan: Strategy 
2030 (2012), and the City of Carlsbad Long Term Plan (2012). All of these plans 
emphasize the importance of economic diversity and development in Carlsbad, 
and the significant housing need. 

Revised Concept Plan 
The Concept Plan shows general land use categories and a proposed roadway 
network, with access points and connectivity to existing roadways. 

The Concept Plan proposes 306.8 acres of industrial development and 88.3 
acres of business park. The industrial and business park development is 
primarily located in the northern portion of the plan area. The location of these 
uses in the northern portion of the plan area seeks to take advantage of the 
proximity to the airport, the other industrial activity close to the airport and the 
traffic along Derrick Road. This area could potentially include a truck stop, though 
specific uses would be addressed in the Final PUD. 

The Concept Plan proposes 702.2 acres of residential development. The 
residential development is primarily single family, but also includes multifamily, 
Age-Restricted, and RV Parking. The Concept Plan also includes locations for a 
school and larger parks within the plan area. Smaller pocket and neighborhood 
parks will be part of the finer grained detail of future residential subdivisions. The 
Concept Plan shows a potential City park and open space located along National 
Parks Highway. This land is currently owned by the City of Carlsbad, and due to 
its location in relation to the Cavern City Airport runway, potential developed uses 
for the property are limited, making a park and open space logical uses. 

The Concept Plan proposes 82.4 acres of commercial development. The 
proposed commercial development includes a 25-acre Entertainment area and a 
mixed use 15-acre Town Center area. 

Montclair Planned Unit Development Page2 

18

18



(.9 
z 
~ Community Engagement 
<( 
__J On October 61

h , the project team held a community meeting. The meeting was 
0... 

well attended. At the community meeting, three different land use concepts were 
presented to the community and feedback was received on the concepts. The 
revised Concept Plan is an amalgamation of those concepts and incorporates the 
feedback we received. The proposed concepts were well received, and the 
project team was also able to address general questions on intent, timing, traffic 
impacts, and potential uses. 

Conclusion 
On behalf of Hermes Development NM, LLC the project team (LBG 
Development, Consensus Planning, and Souder Millers & Associates) 
respectfully requests that the Planning & Zoning Commission approve the 
request for this Concept Plan for the Montclair Planned Unit Development. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Principal 

/ 

· ·--c:' Gary Lane, AICP, Principal, LBG Development 

Paul Pompeo, P.E., Senior Engineer, Souder, Miller & Associates 

Attachment: Montclair Planned Unit Development Preferred Alternative Land Use 
Concept Plan 

Montclair Planned Unit Development Page 3 

19

19



ARR 
96.0AC. 

rn 

-
~---

ARR 

81.2 
rn -

~-- -- -..........:::: 

CAVERN 

open 
space 

I 
I 

10.4 AC. 
[]]] 

p 
12.0AC. 

1271 

-- --~--

-
AC~ 

[2[1 
I I -, 

I 
22.2~C. 

I 

I 

SF 
73.8AC. 
[]] 

I 

SF 
75.3AC. 

rn 

-
~-- --

/ 

.. 

LAND USE 

ARR Age Restricted Residential 207.9 AC 

SF Single Family Residential 381.8AC 

Multi-Family Residential 90.3AC 

RV RV Park 22.2AC 

s School 10.4AC 

Commercial 42.4AC 

Town Center/Mixed Use 15AC 

Entertainment 25AC 

BP Business Park 88.3AC 

Industrial 306.8AC 

p Parks and Open Space 17.0AC 

..... 
: ' - Project Boundary 

MASTER PLAN 

OWNER 
HERMES DEVELOPMENT NM, LLC 

PROJECT TEAM 
PLANNING/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

CONSENSUS PLANNING, INC. 
ENGINEERING 

SOUDER, MILLER & ASSOCIATES 

PREFERED ALTERNATIVE LAND USE CONCEPT 

!~ 
NORTH 

SCALE: 1' = 500' 

250 0 
I 

OCTOBER 
2016 

500 ._______ 

20

20



RC:S 
7"9.1 .... c 

RES 
-'2.5 i<C 

RES 
122.6 J.~ 

EXISll G 
~s 
11&3 olrC 

411 LOTS 

RES 
:54.7 o1rC 

LAND u·sE: PLAN 

INST 
,~ N; 

INST 
?N; 

RE:S 
117. 7 w:;. 

NORTH 
SCALE: N. T.S. 

RES 

LEGEND 
0 USE 

RESmrn11 ·· 

CQM~ERICAI... 

I !rnTUTlO.~ AL 

COL.l.ECTOR 
ROADS & st:~ . 

AREA 

22 AC 

em AC 

1278 AC 

cepuopooopuo 

Pl<l n ning and 
Archit·ectu r·e 

21

21



NA
TIO

NA
L P

AR
KS

 HW
Y

HASTON RD

KE
VIL

 R
D

TO
VA

R 
RD

W DERRICK RD

MO
LIN

AR
 R

D

GILL
OCK RD

NO
RR

IS
 R

D

DAL PASO RD
VE

ST
 R

D

ET
CH

VE
RR

Y R
D

SALAZAR RD

AIRWAY DR

MCFARLAND RD

COLEMAN RD

ET
CH

EV
ER

RY
 R

D

Montclair Development¯

0 ½ 1¼ Miles
10/25/2016

22

22



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

                                        Meeting Date: 11/7/16 
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering and Regulation  

BY: Georgia Goad, Deputy 
Planning Director 

DATE: 10/18/2016 
  

SUBJECT: Appeal (variance) from Section 56-90(b) to allow a front-yard setback variance of 10’ from the 
property line instead of 30’, at 712 N. 12th St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, Hillside Amended 
Subdivision, zoned “R-1” Residential District. 
 
Applicant: 
Rafael Ramos 
712 N. 12th St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
 
*The applicant provided the required notification to property owners within 100’ and agreed to post 

the required sign 5-days prior to the public hearing as required by Sec. 56-140(i). 

 

SYNOPSIS: The applicant is requesting a variance from the 30’ front setback to 10’ setback for a metal 
carport in the front of the residence. The carport will be placed on the 12th St. frontage of the property. This 
particular property, being on the corner of N. 12th St. and W. Church St., by ordinance is supposed to observe 
front setbacks on both Church St. and 12th St. 
 

Sec. 56-150(k) of the Zoning Ordinance states: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall only approve a variance if it makes 
the following findings: 

(a) The stated hardship is one that is unique to the applicant rather than one 
suffered by the neighbors or the general public, and 

(b) The hardship relates to the applicant's land, rather than personal 
circumstances, and 

(c) The hardship is not the result of the applicant's own actions, and 

(d) The granting of the variance is consistent with the City's Comprehensive 
Plan or other City master plan, and 

(e) The granting of the variance is in harmony with the purpose and intent of 
the Zoning Ordinance, and 

(f) The variance granted is the minimum necessary to make possible the 
reasonable use of the land or structure, and 

(g) The granting of the variance will not be injurious to adjacent property or the 
neighborhood or detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare, 
and 

(h) The variance will neither result in the extension or expansion of a non-
conforming structure or use in violation of Article VII nor authorize the 
initiation of a non-conforming use of land. 

The applicant did not provide justification of this request that meets the criteria above. 

 

23

23



IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.): The front-yard and side-yard setback 
standards of Section 56-90(b) of the Zoning Ordinance is meant to preserve a buffer along the fronts and 
sides of residential properties. This buffer is designed to provide access for emergency situations and for 
safety purposes.  
 
The following Greater Carlsbad Comprehensive Plan: Strategy 2030 goals apply to this request:  

Chapter 3: Land Use 
Goal 4: “The City of Carlsbad will strive to create an aesthetically pleasing built environment.” 

Chapter 4: Housing 
Goal 2: Carlsbad will ensure that local housing protects the health, safety, and welfare of residents and their 
neighbors. 
 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the application materials and staff comments, the 
Planning staff recommends denial.  

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION (please check): 
 Approval Denial n/a  Approval Denial n/a 
Public Works    Plng., Eng. & Reg. Dept:    
Fire Department        Code Enforcement Division         
Legal Department  x    Engineering Division    
Police Department    Planning Division  x  
Utilities Department   x Building & Regulation Division    
Culture & Rec. Dept.   x                  Carlsbad Irrigation District   x 

 

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: 
Public Works:  No comments 
 
Utilities Department:  Utilities has no conflicts/comments. 
 
Building Department:  No comments. 
  
Fire Department: No comments. 
  
Code Enforcement:  No comments. 
    
Legal Department:  12th Street Setback 
I recommend denial.  The applicant has not shown that this application meets the requirements of Sec. 56-
150(K) needed for the grant of a variance.  It appears that a carport could be placed to the east or south of the 
home and be set so that the front yard setbacks were met.   
  
Planning Department:  See comments above. 
    
Police Department:  No comments. 
     
Culture and Recreation Department:  No comments. 
 
City Engineer:   
 
Carlsbad Irrigation District:  CID neither supports nor opposes this application since the application does not 
impact our operations. 
ATTACHMENTS: Application materials  

24

24



Board of Appeals Application Page I of 7 9- 11 -2014 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, 

and Regulation Department 
PO Box 1569, Carlsbad, NM 88221 

Phone (575) 885-1185 
Fax (575) 628-8379 

BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 
(VARIANCE FROM SUBDM SION OR ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Sec. 47-7 or Sec. 56-lSO(c) 

PROCESS FOR ACCEPTANCE AND REVIEW 
OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MAITERS 

1. The Planning and Zoning Commission's regularly scheduled meetings are on the FIRST MONDAY 
OF THE MONTH. Applicant should obtain an Application Packet for the particular type of request 
(Zone Change, Subdivision, Variance, Annexation, Conditional Use, etc.) from the City of Carlsbad, 
Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office. 

2. Applicant must submit a completed Application to the Planning, Engineering, and 
Regulation Office on, or before, the FIRST FRIDAY OF THE MONTH prior to the desired 
Commission meeting. The minimum application packet submittal is one (1) copy of the Application 
with original signatures and all required supporting documents. A letter of explanation or clarification 
may also be provided. The required non-refundable application fee is due with submittal of the 
application. 

The desired maximum size for all documents is 11 "x17". H owever, if the applicant wishes to 
support his or her application with larger size documents, an original and fifteen (15) copies 
need to be provided. Separate arrangements for copying these large documents may be possible, but 
will incur additional costs. 

3. The Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office will give the Application an initial cursory review. If 
deficiencies or questions are noted, the Applicant will be advised and provided an opportunity to 
supplement the application. If the Applicant fails to complete and resubmit the application prior to 
the above deadline, the matter will not be heard until the next subsequent Commission meeting. The 
original application fee will be retained and will suffice for the specific original application for a period 
of 90-days from the date of the original application. 

4. Applications appearing complete will be set for full evaluation by City Staff prior to the Commission 
meeting. The purpose of this evaluation is to develop and provide a full briefing report for the 
Commission. Applicants will be advised of deficiencies noted during this review and will be afforded 
opportunity to supplement their application during their presentation to the Commission, if they so 
desire. 

5. The Planning and Zoning Commission will vote to approve or deny the request. Applicant or 
his/her representative must be present to address any questions that Planning and Zoning 
Commissioners may have. Appeals of Planning and Zoning Commission decisions will be heard 
by the City Council pursuant to Sec. 56-150(c). 

6. The applicant shall mail notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing, via certified mail, 
to all property owners within one-hundred feet (100') of the subject site. Evidence of such 
notification shall be provided with the application. 1n addition, the applicant shall post a sign, 
provided by the City, at the prope1ty at least 5 days prior to the public hearing. 

25

25



Board of Appeals Application Page 2 of7 9-11-2014 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 

: 

1 

• t I • • > .. l. • , ., ~ 

Pia~ Engineering, 
and Regulation Department 

PO Box 1569, Carlsbad, NM 88221 
Phone (575) 885-1185 

Fax (575) 628-8379 

BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 
(VARIANCE FROM SUBDIVISION OR ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Sec. 47-7 or Sec. 56-lSO(c) 

Application Date: q_ .2<J-/b Fee Paid ($50.00): ¢ 
APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

t(r;r-faeJ kat11 OS 7 I:< I;< 'lit_ Sf· 
NAME ADDRESS 

Carl~bCA.d) NM gg~o CbodJlf;D-bbtfg 
CI'IY STATE Z IP PHONE E1v1Ail. 

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION (IFDlFFERENTFROM APPLICA.NT): 

NAME ADDRESS 

Cl1Y STATE ZTP PHONE EMAlL 

DRESS OF PROPERTY (FOR WHICH VARIANCE IS 

TYPE OF REQUEST (CHECK ONE): 

___ VARIANCE FROM THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS (CHAPTER 47 - CODE OF 
ORDINANCES) AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 47-7, VARIANCES. 

SPECIFY REGULATION AND/OR SUBSECTION: - - --------- - 

L vARIANCE I'ROM THE ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 56 - CODE OF ORDINANCES) AS 
PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 56-lSO(c). 

SPECIFY REGULATION AND/OR SUBSECTION: & - 5{) Cbha.hle b 

., I! ) II 

26

26



Board o f Appeals Applicatio n Page 3 of 7 

JUSTIFICATION FOR REQUEST AND SITE PLAN: (Describe the topograph.icalmuquenes$ of the property or 
extreme practical difficulties or undue hardslup that would result from the strict application of the requirement(s) 
contained in the ordinance section from which the variance is requested. Include a site plan drawn to scale or with 
accurate dimensions showing property lines, existing and proposed fences and/ or walls, setbacks, building and structure 
locations and parking areas. Attach a separate sheet if necessary.) 

jl(/o~ {Jv r 

ft::Jr/c,.~lc. c~/'t£>rr 

J/1 ~c>;t I S*"e :/-.b, 

!'2- +<-

Jlcl 

27

27



Board of ;\ppeals Application Page -l of 7 

Zoning Ordinance 
Cr·iteria for Appeals- Sec. 56-150(c)(4): 

The purpose of the appeal procedure is to determine if the decision being appealed meets the 
requirements of tllis Zarling Ordinance. The City Council or the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
when hearing an appear, is limited to the following determinations: 

(a) The decision-maker made an error in reviewing whether a standard was met, by a 
misreading_ of the facts, plans, regulations or an enor in judgment. 

(b) Where conflicting evidence exists, the appeal is limited to determining what 
evidence or testimony bears the greatest credibility. 

(c) The decision-maker made the decision on standards not contained in this or other 
City ordinances, regulations or state law; or a standard was applied more strictly 
or broadly than is appropriate to implement the City's Comprehensive Plan and 
this Zoning Ordinance. 

Subdivision Regulations 
Criteria for Appeals- Sec. 4 7-7 
Whenever, in the opinion of the board of appeals, the strict application of the requirements contained in 
this chapter would result in extreme practical difficulties or undue misuse of property, the board may 
modify such requirements as are necessary so that the subdivider is allowed to develop his/her property 
in a reasonable manner providing that the public interests of the community and its citizens are protected 
and the general intent and spirit of these regulations are preserved. The board shall grant such a 
variance or modification only upon determination that: 

1. The variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety and general welfare of 
the community; 
2. The variance will not adversely affect the reasonable development of adjacent property; 
3. The variance is justified because of topographic or other special conditions unique to the 
property_involved in contradistinction to mere inconvenience or financial disadvantage; 
4. The val"iance is consistent with the objectives of this chapter and will not have the effect 
of nullifying the intent or purpose of this chapter or the comprehensive plan; 
5. The variance has b~en shown to be in the best interest of the general public and not only 
of interest to the developer, land owner or other interested party; 
6 The hardship mustn,ot be pecuniary and must be a direct result of the land location , 
topography or other characteristic; 
7 Where a variance is requested from the required provision of sidewalks, and ADA 
compliant, alternative route to the nearest bus stop or school is required. If an alternative 
route cannot be provided, a variance shall not be approved. 

Required prior to P & Z: 
Complete Application Including: 

P & Z Action: 0 Approved 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 

0 Sire Plan 0 Fee 0 Notification 
OSign Posting Agreement 
0 ABM 0 Staff Comments 

0 Denied 0 Other 

0 Letter of Explanation 
OSign Posted 
0 Application Packet 

Dare: ____ _ 

28

28



Board of Appeals ApplicaLion P:>ge 5 of 7 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
AFFIDAVIT BY PROPERTY OWNER(S) 

IF AN APPLICATION IS MADE BY SOMEONE OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY OWNER 
THIS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY THE APPLICATION MATERIALS. 

APPLICATION TYPE: 

0ZON1NG CHANGE 0CONDITIONAL USE 0VARIANC E 0TEMPORARY USE 

I (WE) HEREBY CERTIFY that I am (we are) the owners of record of the property described as follows: 

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: ___________ """M'i>i=i=i~=~-----------
STREET ADDRESS 

LEGAL DESSCRPT!ON: -===,-;;-----~~,------------....,....,:::-=::-=:-:-=:-------
suootvtstoN BLOCK LOT OR TRACT 

1 (WE) HAVE AUTHORIZED the following individuals to act as my (our) agent with regard to this application. 

AGENT: 
NAME PHONE 

I (WE) UNDERSTAND, CONCUR AND AFFIRM: 

That this application may be approved, approved with conditions or denied and that, as the property 
owner, it is my responsibility to ensure that any conditions are complied with and to ensure that the 
property is maintained in a condition so as not to jeopardize the health, sa fety or welfare of others and 
that compliance with all applicable City ordinances is required, and 

I (WE) HEREBY EXECUTE THIS AFFIDA VlT in suppoti of the proposed application as presented: 

OWNER!: 

BY: _______ r=~~---------------------
stGNATURE NO'IARY SEA L 

BY: ____ -===~~-----------
rRtNTEo NAME 

DATE: _ __ --=-::="""=:=------------
oATEStGNEo 

OWNER 2: (IF APPLICABLE) 

BY: ____ -=~==~-----------
stoNATURE NOTARY SEAL 

BY: ____ ~====~~----------
rR.INTEDNMtE 

DATE: ___ --="'="""=:=-----------
oATEstoNED ····················-······················· . ························· ·············· ·········· ······-·························· 

ADDITIONAL OWNERS: ATTACH SEPARATE SHEETS AS NECESSARY 

29

29



13oard o f Appeals Applicatio n Page 6 o f 7 

NOTIFICATION SIGN 
POSTING AGREEMENT 

Notification of Public Hearings before the City of Carlsbad Planning and Zoning 
Commission is required pursuant to Sec. 56-140(i). 

• Signs shall be posted a minimum of 5 days prior to and shall be removed a 
maximum of 5 days after the public hearing. 

• If the sign is not posted as required, the application will be delayed and will not be 
considered at the public hearing as scheduled. 

• The sign shall be posted at the street side property line with a secure stake provided 
by the applicant. 

I have read and understand these requirements. I understand where the sign is to be 
located and my obligation to post the sign prior to the public hearing and remove it 
afterwards. (Sc n) 
J,}J ~ fv~ Vat-ot~ I £a.~os 
APPUCANT SIGNATURE 

10-tO-/{o 
DATE 

Sign issued by: -tJJw->y'->;;)tr<---------Sflff MTnher 

Rev. I 011 1 

30

30



Zoning Change Application Page 7 of7 

Date: <[ /Jo } ! (, 
I 

Dear Property Owner, 

This letter serves as legal notification of a pending action before the City of Carlsbad Planning and 
Zoning Commission in accordance with Code of Ordinances Sec. 56-l40(i). You are being notified 
because you are a property owner within one-hundred feet (1 00 ') of the subject site. 

Applicant: IZo. -fat! £amos bOd. -Jf/0 -bb'fg 
Name Phone 

7 / . ., A/d~,ess\0 GJJ-. 
Subject Site Location: ----'--L-""<2\'-'--_...._.(6r.<--->-..Ljl1Ll~-~--=:~...-----------

The proposed action is a: 
0 Zoning Change from ____ to _ _ _ _ in accordance with Sec. 56-150(b ). 

'/J. Variance/Appeal from Sec. $.qQ(Ia) Ta,/,/e 0in accordance with Sec. 56-150(c). 

The purpose of the variance/appeal is: 1 -£r; f -jL J: {v 
_/3 ' 'f/fer than ,3Q on SLYJar ~ 

Carpo 
0 Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Sec. 56- lSO(f) . The purpose of the permit is for a: 

0 Home Occupation: _ _ _ ______ _ 
0 OtherUse: - - ----- - - --- -

The Planning TJ6 Zoning Commission will consider this request at a Public Hearing on: 
Date: Vt.mher 71 ~0/p Time: 5:00pm 
Place: City Hall Planning Room, 2nd Floor 

101 N. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The Code of Ordinances can be found on the City' s website \V\V\V.c itvofcarlsbadnm.com. 
For details about this request contact the applicant OR contact the City Planner at 
575-885-1185 or via email at jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 

Sincerely, 

·Kt). w R~ W\ o..5 

Applicant/Agent 

31

31



U1 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL~ RECEIPT 

U.S. Postal Service'" 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only . . 

Domestic Mail Only 

[g ~mi~~~~~mm~~~~~~l!~~~~~~~-. 
~ L_--~~~~~----~~~--~~~~--~ 

~ L---~~~~~~~~~~--~~~~--~ :::r 
:::r 
rn 
ru rn 

ru 

.--=! 
CJ Return Receipt Fee 
CJ (Endorsement Required) 1----4+1,--A-.=r-:---1 
CJ 

CJ 
r
~ 

Certified Feo 

ru ~~~--~wu~-----.----.~---, 

·u.s. Postal service'" · ·· · 

r-
CERTIFIED MAIL~ RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only · · , '· 

~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~mml!~~~~~llii 

ru 
rn 
CJ 
U1 

~ 

PS Form 3800, July 2014 · , , See Reverse for Instructions 

U.S. Postal ServicerM 
CERTIFIED MAILM RECEIPT 
(Domestic Mall Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided). 

~ L_--~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
rn P~1~4 L-----~~~v 
Cl 
Cl Certified Fee 

Cl Return Receipt Foe 
Cl (Endorsement Required) 1----4+Hift-+1 

PS Form 3800, July 201 4 Sco Reverse for Instructions 

-u.s. Postal Service'" . _ · 

ru 
..ll 

CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT . 
Domestic Mail Only · · · · 

~ ~~9~~~~~~-~--· 
~ ~------~~~~--~~~~~~~~~----~ 
ITl 
ru 

.--=! 
Certified Fee 

Cl Return Receipt Fee 
Cl (Endorsement Required) 

Cl r-----~~+-~ Restricted Delivery Fee 
Cl (Endorsement Required) 

r- $0 . ff-----------..:-1 
~ 
ru 

CJ 

U.S. Postal Service'"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only . . · 

~ ~~~~~mD~mmllm!!m~~~E!ZI~~~IIIII 

.--=! 
Certified Fee 

CJ Return Receipt Feo 
CJ (Endorsement Required) 
CJ ~----~~tH-4 

Restricted Delivery Foo 
CJ (Endorsement Required) 
r- $0 • 1!--7-----------l 
~ Total Postage & Foes 
ru F ~-----------J 

SentTo I z 
~ ·5··8.1!.. 1../f-.~.t;-: .-IJ .. .S..Q.Q.!?. V.. .Jit{/.c,!1 .... JZ .. ':1.J£? .. ({. ..... 
CJ treat & Ap t. NO., t J {.__ 
r- ~;~~~:-~~.4···/!!i·i!J·~··g;p·£~6·· ····· · ·· 

: • • 

32

32



!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

CHURCH

TW
EL

FT
H

MISSOURI

EL
EV

EN
TH

710

704

712

704

708

702

712711

707

705

703

702

3000

2801

2
T22S
R26E

35
T21S
R26E

¯ 712 N. 12th St. St.

33

33



34

34



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

                                        Meeting Date: 11/7/16 
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering and Regulation  

BY: Georgia Goad, Deputy 
Planning Director 

DATE: 10/18/2016 
  

SUBJECT: Appeal (variance) from Section 56-90(b) to allow a front-yard setback variance of 5.5’ from the 
front property line instead of 30’, at 3317 Kuykendall St., legally described as Lot 18, Block 2, Sunnyview Park 
Unit 1, zoned “R-1” Residential District. 
 
Applicant: 
Eric Robinson 
3317 Kuykendall 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
 
*The applicant provided the required notification to property owners within 100’ and agreed to post 

the required sign 5-days prior to the public hearing as required by Sec. 56-140(i). 

 

SYNOPSIS: The applicant is requesting a variance from the 30’ front setback to 5.5’ setback for a metal 
carport in the front of the residence. The carport will be placed on the Kuykendall St. frontage of the property. 
This particular property, being on the corner of Kuykendall St. and Pike Rd. by ordinance is supposed to 
observe front setbacks on both Kuykendall St. and Pike Rd. 
Sec. 56-150(k) of the Zoning Ordinance states: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall only approve a variance if it makes 
the following findings: 

(a) The stated hardship is one that is unique to the applicant rather than one 
suffered by the neighbors or the general public, and 

(b) The hardship relates to the applicant's land, rather than personal 
circumstances, and 

(c) The hardship is not the result of the applicant's own actions, and 

(d) The granting of the variance is consistent with the City's Comprehensive 
Plan or other City master plan, and 

(e) The granting of the variance is in harmony with the purpose and intent of 
the Zoning Ordinance, and 

(f) The variance granted is the minimum necessary to make possible the 
reasonable use of the land or structure, and 

(g) The granting of the variance will not be injurious to adjacent property or the 
neighborhood or detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare, 
and 

(h) The variance will neither result in the extension or expansion of a non-
conforming structure or use in violation of Article VII nor authorize the 
initiation of a non-conforming use of land. 

The applicant did not provide justification of this request that meets the criteria above. 

IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.): The front-yard and side-yard setback 
standards of Section 56-90(b) of the Zoning Ordinance is meant to preserve a buffer along the fronts and 
sides of residential properties. This buffer is designed to provide access for emergency situations and for 

35

35



safety purposes.  
 
The following Greater Carlsbad Comprehensive Plan: Strategy 2030 goals apply to this request:  

Chapter 3: Land Use 
Goal 4: “The City of Carlsbad will strive to create an aesthetically pleasing built environment.” 

Chapter 4: Housing 
Goal 2: Carlsbad will ensure that local housing protects the health, safety, and welfare of residents and their 
neighbors. 
 

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the application materials and staff comments, the 
Planning staff recommends denial.  

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION (please check): 
 Approval Denial n/a  Approval Denial n/a 
Public Works   x Plng., Eng. & Reg. Dept:    
Fire Department        Code Enforcement Division        x 
Legal Department  x    Engineering Division   x 
Police Department   x Planning Division  x  
Utilities Department   x Building & Regulation Division   x 
Culture & Rec. Dept.   x                  Carlsbad Irrigation District   x 

 

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS: 
Public Works:  No comments 
 
Utilities Department:  Utilities has no conflicts/comments. 
 
Building Department:  No comments. 
  
Fire Department: No comments. 
  
Code Enforcement:  No comments. 
    
Legal Department:  Kuykendall Setback 
I recommend denial.  The applicant has not demonstrated that this application meets any of the variance 
requirements set forth in Sec. 56-150(K).  It looks like the home had a garage, but that the garage was 
converted into additional living space.   
 
Planning Department:  See comments above. 
    
Police Department:  No  comments. 
     
Culture and Recreation Department:  No comments. 
 
City Engineer:   
 
Carlsbad Irrigation District:  CID neither supports nor opposes this application since the application does not 
impact our operations. 
ATTACHMENTS: Application materials  

36

36



Board of Appeals 1\pplication Page I of7 9-11 -2014 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, 

and Regulation Department 
PO Box 1569, Carlsbad, NM 88221 

Phone (57 5) 885-1185 
Fax (575) 628-8379 

BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 
(VARIANCE FROM SUBDMSION OR ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Sec. 47-7 or Sec. 56-150(c) 

PROCESS FOR ACCEPTANCE AND REVIEW 
OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MA TIERS 

I . The Planning and Zoning Commission's regularly scheduled meetings are on the FIRST MONDAY 
OF THE MONTH. Applicant should obtain an Application Packet for the particular type of request 
(Zone Change, Subdivision, Variance, Annexation, Conditional Use, etc.) from the City of Carlsbad, 
Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office. 

2. Applicant must submit a completed Application to the Planning, Engineering, and 
Regulation Office on, or before, the FIRST FRIDAY OF THE MONTH prior to the desired 
Commission meeting. The minimum application packet submittal is one (1) copy of the Application 
with original signatures and all required supporting documents. A letter of explanation or clarification 
may also be provided. The required non-refundable application fee is due with submittal of the 
application. 

The desired maximum size for all documents is 11 "x17". However, if the applicant wishes to 
support his or her application with larger size documents, an original and fifteen (15) copies 
need to be provided. Separate arrangements for copying these large documents may be possible, but 
will incur additional costs. 

3. The Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office will give the Application an initial cursory review. If 
deficiencies or questions are noted, the Applicant will be advised and provided an opportunity to 
supplement the application. If the Applicant fails to complete and resubmit the application prior to 
the above deadline, the matter will not be heard until the next subsequent Commission meeting. The 
original application fee will be retained and will suffice for the specific original application for a period 
of 90-days from the date of the original application. 

4. Applications appearing complete will be set for full evaluation by City Staff prior to the Commission 
meeting. The purpose of this evaluation is to develop and provide a full briefing report for the 
Commission. Applicants will be advised of deficiencies noted during this review and will be afforded 
opportunity to supplement their application during their presentation to d1e Commission, if they so 
desire. 

5. The Planning and Zoning Commission will vote to approve or deny the request. Applicant or 
his/her representative must be present to address any questions that Planning and Zoning 
Commissioners may have. Appeals of Planning and Zoning Commission decisions will be heard 
by the City Council pursuant to Sec. 56-150( c). 

6. The applicant shall mail notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing, via certified mail, 
to all property owners within one-hundred feet (100') of the subject site. Evidence of such 
notification shall be provided with the application. In addition, the applicant shall post a sign, 
provided by the City, at the property at least 5 days prior to the public hearing. 

37

37



Board of Appeals Application Page 2 of 7 9-11-2014 

· :Receipt Date Stump 
OCT - 7 2016 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, 

and Regulation Department 
PO Box 1569, Carlsbad, NM 88221 

Phone (575) 885-1185 
Fax (575) 628-8379 

BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 
(VARIANCE FROM SUBDIVISION OR ZONING ORDINANCE) 

Sec. 47-7 or Sec. 56-150(c) 

Application Date: J 0- 7 - I ~ Fee Paid ($50.00): / p 1/ P 

ADDRESS 

PHONE EivWL 
tPfL~tvJ,~ @ 
yahtJd . C~I 

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION (IFDIPFERENTPROMAPPLICANT): 

NAiviE ADDRESS 

CITY STATE ZIP PHONE EMAIL 

DRESS OF PROPERTY (FOR WHICH VARIANCE IS 

TYPE OF REQUEST (CHECK ONE): 

_ __ VARIANCE FROM THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS (CHAPTER 47- CODE OF 
ORDINANCES) AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 47-7, VAlUANCES. 

SPECIFY REGULATION AND/OR SUBSECTION:---- ----- - --

'1] VARIANCE FROM TI-lE ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 56 - CODE OF ORDINANCES) AS 
~ED FOR IN SECTION 56-lSO(c). 

SPECIFY REGULATION AND/OR SUBSECTION: 5b-Cf(J(b)T o.h/~ 0 

38

38



Board of Appeals Application Page 3 of 7 

JUSTIFICATION FOR REQUEST AND SITE PLAN: (Describe the topographical unic1ueness of the property or 
extreme practical difficulties or undue hardship that would result from the strict application of the reguirement(s) 
contained in the orclinance section from which the variance is requested. Include a site plan drawn to scale or with 
accurate climensions showing property lines, existing and proposed fences and/ or walls, setbacks, building and structure 
locations and parking areas. Attach a separate sheet if necessary.) 

39

39



Board of Appeals Appucarion Page 4 of 7 

Zoning Ordinance 
Criteria for Appeals- Sec. 56-150(c)(4): 

The purpose of the appeal procedure is to determine if the decision being appealed meets the 
requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. The City Council or the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
when hearing an appeal, is limited to the following determinations: 

(a) The decision-maker made an error in reviewing whether a standard was met, by a 
misreading of the facts, plans, regulations or an error in judgment. 

(b) Where conflicting evidence exists, the appeal is limited to determining what 
evidence or testimony bears the greatest credibility. 

(c) The decision-maker made the decision on standards not contained in this or other 
City ordinances, regulations or state law; or a standard was applied more strictly 
or broadly than is appropriate to implement the City's Comprehensive Plan and 
this Zoning Ordinance. 

Subdivision Regulations 
Criteria for Appeals - Sec. 47-7 
Whenever, in the opinion of the board of appeals, the strict application of the requirements contained in 
this chapter would result in extreme practical difficulties or undue misuse of propetty, the board may 
modify such requirements as are necessaty so that the subdivider is allowed to develop his/her property 
in a reasonable manner providing that the public interests of the community anrl its citizens are protected 
and the general intent and spirit of these regulations are preserved. The board shall grant such a 
variance or modification only upon determination that: 

1. The variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety and general welfare of 
the community; 
2. The variance will not adversely affect the r easonable development of adjacent property; 
3. The variance is justified because of topographic or other special conditions unique to the 
property involved in contradistinction to mere inconvenience or financial disadvantage; 
4. The variance is consistent with the objectives of this chapter and will not have the effect 
of nullifying the intent or purpose of this chapter or the comprehensive plan; 
5. The variance has been shown to be in the best interest of the general public and not only 
of interest to the developer, land owner or other interested party; 
6 The hardship must not be pecuniary and must be a direct result of the land location, 
topography or other characteristic; 
7 Where a variance is r equested from the required provision of sidewalks, and ADA 
compliant, alternative route to the n earest bus stop or school is required. If an alternative 
route cannot be provided, a variance shall not be approved. 

F OR OFFI CIAL USE ONLY: 
Required prior to P & Z: 
Complete Application Including: D Site Plan D Fee D Notification 

D Sign Posting Agreement 
D ABM D Staff Comments 

P & Z Action: 0 Approved D Denied D Other 

D Letter of Explanation 
DSign Pos ted 
D Application Packet 

Date: _ _ _ _ _ 

40

40



Iloard of Appeals Application Page 5 of 7 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
AFFIDAVIT BY PROPERTY OWNER(S) 

IF AN APPLICATION IS MADE BY SOMEONE OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY OWNER 
THIS FORM MUST ACCO.MP ANY THE APPLICATION MATERIALS. 

APPLJCATION TYPE: 

0ZONING C HANGE 0CONDITIONAL USE DVARIANCE DTEMPORARY USE 

I (WE) HEREBY CERTIFY that I am (we are) the owners of record of the propetty described as follows: 

ADDRESSOF PROPERTY: ______________________ ~~~~~-----------------------
STREET ADDRESS 

LEGAL D ESSCRPTION: -;;-;-==;;;o;---------~~~------------------;-;;::::-=~:-:-=:----------
susolvl stoN BLOCK LOT OR TRACT 

1 (WE) HAVE AUTHORIZED the fo llowing individuals to act as my (our) agent with regard to this application. 

AGENT: 
NA.VlE PHONE 

I (WE) UNDERSTAND, CONCUR AND AFFIRM: 

That this application may be approved, approved with conditions or denied and that, as the prope1ty 
owner, it is my responsibility to ensure that any conditions are complied with and to ensure that the 
propetty is maintained in a condition so as not to jeopardize the health, safety or welfare of others and 
that compliance w ith all applicable City ordinances is required, and 

I (WE) ffEREBY EXECUTE THIS AFFIDA YIT in support of the proposed application as presented: 

OWNERl: 

BY: ________ ~~mn.~--------------------
s tGNATURE NOT ARY SEAL 

BY: ________ -=~=u~~------------------
PRtNTED NAME 

DATE: ______ --.:-."""'=""'"'"-------------------
DATE s tGNED 

OWNER 2: (IF APPLICABLE) 

BY: ________ <=~~~--------------------
s tGNAl URE NOTARY SEAL 

BY: ________ -=~~~~-----------------
rRtNTED NAME 

DATE:. ______ ~"'"""=""'"'"-------------------
DATESIGNED 

ADDlTIONAL OWNERS: ATTACH SEPARATE SHEETS AS NECESSARY 

41

41



Board of 1\ppea1s Application Page 6 of 7 

NOTIFICATION SIGN 
POSTING AGREEMENT 

Notification of Public Hearings before the City of Carlsbad Planning and Zoning 
Commission is required pursuant to Sec. 56-140(i). 

• Signs shall be posted a minimum of 5 days prior to and shall be removed a 
maximum of 5 days after the public hearing. 

• If the sign is not posted as required, the application will be delayed and will not be 
considered at the public hearing as scheduled. 

• The sign shall be posted at the street side property line with a secure stake provided 
by the applicant. 

I have read and understand these requirements. I understand where the sign is to be 
located and my obligation to post the sign prior to the public hearing and remove it 

a e)'ards. 

t ;f)- 7-!C, 
DATE 

Sign issued by: C) J rJ _____ _ 
~~ 

Rev. 10/ 11 

42

42



Zoning Change Application Page 7 of7 

Date: JrQ~ 7-/t 
(I 

Dear Property Owner, 

This letter serves as legal notification of a pending action before the City of Carlsbad Planning and 
Zoning Commission in accordance with Code of Ordinances Sec. 56-140(i). You are being notified 
because you are a property owner within one-hundred feet (1 00') of the subject site. 

Applicant: E-t0 ~Ja~JU~ 575"---302 -t,/0~ 
N~o Ad~ _/ill_ Pho~ 

Subject Site Location: 38 / ] ~A. Q_ 

The proposed action is a: 
0 Zoning Change from to in accordance with Sec. 56-150(b ). 

'tk Variance/Appeal from Sec. 2}._p!fD(bJ {ab/~a~rdance with Sec. 56-150(c). 
~purpose of the variance/app~al is: ~ . . , 

W~tftJq/ketaL 61~ ~ 6 k/f- j2r1SC 

0 Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Sec. 56- lSO(t). The purpose of the permit is for a: 
0 Home Occupation: _ ________ _ 
0 Other Use: ____ ___ _____ _ 

The Planning ~y.d Zoning Commission will consider this request at a Public Hearing on: 
Date: u-7- I (f 
Time: 5:00pm 
Place: City Hall Planning Room, 2nd Floor 

101 N. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The Code of Ordinances can be found on the City' s website W\nv.citvofcarlsbadnm.com. 
For details about this request contact the applicant OR contact the City Planner at 
575-885-1185 or via email atjepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 

Sincerely, 

Applicant/ Agent 

43

43



CJ 

. . os a erv1ce 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only 

Certified Fee 

CJ Return Receipt Fee g (Endorsement Required) 1---...,...,.,-;rr----j 

CJ 
ru 
r'l 
ru 

::r 
r'l 
CJ 
I"'-

ru 
r'l 
ru 
rn 

:•• 

: u:s. Postal service"' · · · · · · · · · 
. CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mail Only 

For delivery Information, visit our website at www.usps.com•. 

~ L_c_Af.~\~~S~·~~~~~~~~~~8~~2~t:' ~~ ~J\~LT--3-=.~~~ 
rn 
ru 

r'l 
D Return Receipt Fee g (Endorsement Required) 1---...rT"r-l'n"r-

Restricted Delivery Fee 
0 (Endorsement Required) J-...---- --l 
I"'- $0. 
cO 

ru ~~----~~--+---~~~~--------~ ::r 
r=l 
D 
I"'-

IT" 

~ iE~~~im~Zi~~iji~~~~~~~~~~~~~· 

r-=l 
CJ 
D 
D 

IT" 
n.J 
n.J 
rn 

IT" 
::r 
rn 
n.J 

r=l 

U.S. Posfal Service'" · . 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only · · · 

Certified Fee 

D Return Receipt Fee 
Cl (Endorsement Required) 
CJ ~--~~~_, 

D 
1"'-
1:() 

ru 
::r 
r'l 
D 
I"'-

D 

U.S. Postal Service"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mail Only 

~ i[;;~i;im~~Dm~~~~~~ml~~~~!!llll~ 
IT" L_~~~~~~~~~r--=~~~--~ ::r 
rn 
ru 
r-=l 
D 
D 
CJ 

CJ 
1"'
<0 

n.J ----~~~2_--n----,----------~ 

· u s Postal Service'" 
C.ERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mail Only 

~ ::~~;;;m~~~~~~;;~ijiiii!~~~~ .... ~ 
IT" 
::r 
rn 
ru 
r=l 
CJ Return Receipt Fee 
0 (Endorsement Required) L--~J..-1.~---j 
CJ 

Reslrlcted Delivery. Fee 
(Endorsement Reqwed) L --------j 

Total Postage & ~A! ~--------' 

44

44



U.S. Postal Service'M 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only 

IT" ~ ~--------~~~--~~~~~~~~--~ 
m 
ru 

.-=! 
CJ 
CJ 
CJ 

Reslrlcted Delivery Fee 
CJ (Endorsement Required) 
1"'- $1). A-r-----___.j 
cO Total Postage & Fees 
ru ~~---------~ 

. ·U.S." Postal Service,., .. 
·CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT . · 
Domestic Mall Only . 

.-=! 
0 Return Receipt Fee r-------*+'+-4*'----1!. 
§l (Endorsement Required) 

Restricted Delivery Fee t-----c,;-,'n'!-4<¥1 
CJ (Endorsement Required) 
1"'- $(1. ,n-------10 

~ Total Postage & Fees 
.,":;'------_J 

~ ~IT.)~~~L-n-~~~~~~~----
.-1 
CJ 
1"'-

U S Postal s · ,,. .. · ., .. , · · ... r · ·· . erv1ce - .· ·,·;:\.::'/'' .. .... ~:-:.r-·~·· 
~ CER~IF.IEI;> MAIL® RECEIPT.·· · · '·i·: ~.'~:· 

Domestic Mail Only · : · . ~ .,~ + .· · · .... ;' .. .--;-tV?:~ 
• .. .,. 'J •· ~. \. ; ... : .; J..-.14~ ;_(·~" . ~ 

U.S. Postal Service'"' 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 
Domestic Mall Only ru 

r:() 

~ ~-------------IT" ~ ~----------~r-------~~~--~=-~~~----~ 
m 
ru 

r-'1 
CJ 
0 
0 

CJ 
1"
cO 
ru 

U.S. Postal Service'M · · 
CERTIFIED MAIL® RECEIPT 

0615 
03 

Domestic Mall Only 
CJ 
.-=! 

~ ~~~m~mm~~~~~ID~~~~~ 
IT" ~ L---~~~--~~~~~~~-T--~=-~~~----~ 
rn 
ru 

.-=! 
CJ 
CJ 
CJ 

CJ 
1"'
cO 
ru 

45

45



! ! ! !

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

PIKE

RUSSELL

KU
YK

EN
DA

LL

CA
SS

323

412410408406404402320318316314

409407405
403

319
317315313

406404

402

320
318316314312

321319317315

3326

3324

3323

3321

3319

3317

3322

3312

3310

3308

3313

3311

3309

20
T22S
R27E

¯ 3317 Kukendall St.

46

46



47

47



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

                                     Meeting Date: 10/6/16 
DEPARTMENT: Planning, 
Engineering, and Regulation 

BY: Jeff Patterson, Planning 
Director 

 DATE: 11/7/16 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of an application and recommendation to the City Council regarding the Infrastructure 
Reimbursement for Brian Stevens RV Park. 
 

Applicant:  
Brian Stevens 
2510 Monte Vista St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
 
HISTORY: In 2008, the City Council adopted an Infrastructure Reimbursement Program whereby the City 
could reimburse private property owners and developers a certain percentage of qualifying infrastructure 
costs. This program was revised in 2012 to increase the percentage of allowable reimbursement and to 
clarify the definition of “qualifying Infrastructure”. Since inception of the program, there have been various 
methods of application review and recommendation to the City Council. Most recently, an ad hoc 
“Development Committee” reviewed these types of applications. Due to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s expertise in the area of planning and development and their familiarity with the projects 
involved in the applications, it was determined that the Commission is the most appropriate entity to review 
these applications.  
 
The Commission’s task is to verify that the applications were completed, submitted and reviewed according 
to the program’s design and recommend to the City Council an amount for reimbursement. The process that 
is followed for application submittal and review is described in the Infrastructure Reimbursement Program 
application. City staff, including the Planning Director, Public Works Director and Utilities Director, have 
reviewed the application, verified that the calculations, quantities and costs are correct and provided a 
recommended amount for reimbursement. A synopsis of this review is provided below along with the 
recommended amount of reimbursement. 
 

SYNOPSIS: In accordance with the Public Infrastructure Reimbursement Program (Resolution 2012-09), this 
request is for the approval of an application and a recommendation to the City Council regarding the 
reimbursement for qualifying public infrastructure related to Brian Stevens RV Park. Approval of this 
application will allow the City and applicant to enter into a Public Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement as 
outlined in Res. 2012-09. 
 
Brian Stevens RV Park included the following improvements: Installation of ~580 linear feet of water line and 
~520 of sewer main line. 
 
Based on the construction estimated costs submitted by the applicant and based on staff review of 

these estimates, the preparation of an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement and reimbursement 

of up to, but not exceeding, $1,594.96 is recommended. The following table summarizes the estimated 
expenses based on staff review of construction plans and cost estimates provided by the applicant: 
 
 
 
 
 

48

48



                                                                    ESTIMATED EXPENSES: 

 

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT 

COST 

SUB 

TOTAL 

TAX 

(.074375) 

TOTAL (15%) 

Water Lines 580 LF $12.33 $7,151.40 $531.89 $7,683.29 $1,152.49 

Water Valve N/A       

Sewer Lines  520 LF $5.28 $2,745.60 $204.20 $2,949.80 $442.47 

Streets & Alleys N/A       

Curb & Gutter N/A       

Sidewalks N/A       

Multi-use Trails N/A       

Bike Lanes N/A       

Traffic Signals N/A       

Lift Stations N/A       

Transit Factions N/A       

Street Lighting in ROW N/A       

        

Total Cost Estimate    $9,897.00  $736.09 $10,633.09 $1,594.96 

Total Reimbursement 

Estimate (15% of Total 

Costs) 

   $1,484.55 $110.41 $1,594.96  

ATTACHMENTS: Application materials  

49

49



~ 

~ 

) 
I 

~ j 
'\ 

'v 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Department 

114 S. Halagueno, Carlsbad, NM 88220 
Phone (575) 885-1185 

Fax (575) 628-8379 

Application for 
INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 

PROCESS FOR ACCEPTANCE AND REVIEW 

1. Applications for the Infrastructure Reimbursement Program are available in the Planning, 
Engineering, and Regulation Office. Applications are accepted concurrent with a preliminary 
plat, building permit or with construction plans associated with a subdivision platted prior to 
adoption of the Subdivision Ordinance. Construction cost estimates are required at the time of 
application. 

2. Applications are accepted on an ongoing basis. The minimum application packet submittal is 
one (1) copy of the completed application with original signatures and all required supporting 
documents. A letter of explanation or clarification shall also be provided. There is no fee for 
applying for this program. The preferred size for all documents is 11 "x17". If larger-sized 
documents are provided, include 15 copies. 

3. The Planning, Engineering, 'and Regulation Office will review the application for completeness. 
The application will be forwarded to the Development Committee for review prior to the City 
Council meeting. If deficiencies are noted, the Applicant will be advised and provided an 
opportunity to supplement the application. The application will not be considered by the City 
Council until it is complete. 

4. If approved, the City will execute an Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement, which details 
additional program requirements. Prior to reimbursement, the actual construction costs are 
required to be submitted concurrent with a fmal plat and as-built drawings and/or a certificate of 
occupancy. 

5. Funding for this program varies from year to year. Reimbursement is on a first come first served 
basis. 

09/11/2014 

Page 1 of7 

50

50



City of Carlsbad, New Mexico 
Infrastructure Reimbursement Program 

Application 

:. :._:. Re 'pt Da 
' ! ~ ~ z 
I 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: The purpose of this program is to support economic development within 
the City by providing private propertY owners and developers a 15% reimbursement of the total on-site 
(within the platted boundaries) and off-site (outside of the platted boundaries) qualifying public 
infrastructure costs associated with an approved development. Qualifying Public Infrastructure includes: 
water lines, sewer lines, lift stations, streets and alleys, street lighting in the right-of-way, sidewalks, 
curb and gutter, multi-use trails, bike lanes, traffic signals, and transit facilities. Engineering costs, 
surveying, site prep, right-of-way and easement acquisition, labor, permitting and consulting fees are not 
eligible for reimbursement. Approval of an application does not guarantee approval of a 
reimbursement. An approved application allows the applicant to proceed with the execution of an 
Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement. Once the requirements specified in the Infrastructure 
Reimbursement Agreement are fulfilled, reimbursement will be granted. 

Phone 

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

Name (subdivision OR pro· 

Location/Cross Streets 

GENERAL PROGRAM CRITERIA AND REQUIREMENTS: 
1. Property and all qualifying public infrastructure must be located within the City Limits. 
2. The application must be completed and approved by the City Council. 
3. The application must be submitted concurrent with a preliminary plat, building permit or with 

construction plans associated with a subdivision platted prior to adoption of the Subdivision 
Ordinance. 

4. Subdivision of land must be in accordance with the City's Subdivision Regulations (Chapter 47 
et. seq.), as amended, including: 

a. Sketch Plan showing each phase of development 
b. Preliminary Plat(s) for each phase of development 
c. Final Plat( s) for each phase of development with dedication of infrastructure noted on the 

plat 
d. Infrastructure that varies from the standard shall not qualify for reimbursement. 

5. Approved subdivisions must be recorded and filed with the County Clerk. 

Page 2 of7 

51

51



6. An Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement must be executed by the City and applicant prior to 
reimbursement. 

7. Reimbursement shall not exceed usual and customary infrastructure costs. 
8. Reimbursement shall not be made for items installed prior to application date. 
9. Reimbursement shall be paid upon total construction completion. Progress billing will not be 

accepted. Final invoices, with proof of payment (cancelled checks, evidence of wire transfer), are 
required. 

10. Reimbursement will be made to the applicant only. No payment will be made to third parties. 
11. Construction of qualifying public infrastructure must begin within 60-days of preliminary plat 

approval and be completed prior to approval of a final plat (if self financed) or within one year of 
final plat approval (if fmanced through a letter of credit). 

12. Greater priority will be given to projects that further City plans and policies, focus on infill 
and/or provide affordable housing (as determined by the NM Mortgage Finance Authority). 

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED INFORMATION: 
Please attach the following information organized in the order listed below: 

1. List of board of directors, executive directors, contractors and subcontractors that have a 
financial interest in the development or are affiliated with, or have a immediate family member 
(mother, father, sister, brother, grandmother, grandfather) affiliated with, the City of Carlsbad; 
and 

2. Federal tax identification number, State tax identification number, and City business registration 
number; and 

3. List any assistance requested from Federal, State or County governments, if any. Include any 
direct funding, land, fee and/or permit waivers; and 

4. A complete and specific description of the proposed development and infrastructure including, 
but not limited to: 

a. Subdivision plats (sketch, preliminary, final) 
b. Construction drawings 
c. Utility requirements, including but not limited to electric, gas, and water 
d. Solid and liquid waste disposal requirements 
e. Infrastructure requirements 
f. Regulatory compliance requirements (environmental assessments, historic 

preservation documents) 
g. As-built construction drawings (at construction completion); and 

5. A description of the proposed infrastructures long term benefit to the City; and 
6. Any other information necessary for the City to make a determination regarding the application 

for reimbursement. 
7. The table on page 4 of this application must be completed. 

Page 3 of7 

52

52



DESCRIPTION OF QUALIFYING INFRASTRUCTURE AND ESTIMATED COSTS (including taxes) 
USE THIS FORM (attach supporting documentation, as necessary): 

!llaiPJ!/~/!Jrb 
ITEM QUANTITY UNIT 

UNfT 
TAX TOTAL 

COST // ~lj 

Water Lines IR'' s-gD F-r 1/1!.53 'l5h:J% i 7/o_J77· "!5! 
Sewer Lines <l'' 5tl.O ~r 5,Z<i ·?,,:fk5c~ ~A9S~~~ 
Streets & Alleys lf~MJir/~~ V{ 
Curb & Gutter 

, I 

Sidewalks 
Multi-Use Trails 
Bike Lanes 
Traffic Signals 
Lift Stations 
Transit Facilities 
Street Lighting in R-0-W 

.// 
/ -

Total Cost Estimate 't ~LJW//Z) 
**Total Reimbursement 
Estimate ( 15°/o of Total 

Costs) 

Page 4 of7 

53

53



SUPP.LY 
WATERWORKS 

Bid Proposal for STEVENS- BARNES RV PARK II 

CONSTRUCTORS INC 
Bid Date: 03/15/2016 05:00p.m. 
HD Supply Bid #: 65844 

Seq# Qty 

10 
20 520 
30 1 
40 1 

8X20' SDR35 PVC SWR PIPE{§) 
6X1000' DETECTO TAPE-SEWER 
8 SDR35 SWR REPAIR CPLG GXG 
8 PVC SDR35 SWR GSKT CAP 
48"X6' FIBERGLASS MANHOLE 

Description 

SEWER 

so 1 
60 1 
70 1 
80 2 

EJIW DOM R&C SAN SEWER 325# WATER TITE 00134283 
8 SDR35 WATERSTOP 

90 WATER 
100 580 6 C900 DR18 PVC PIPE {G) MARKINGS PC235 
110 1 6X1000' DETECTO TAPE-WATER DT6BW -
120 1000 12GA SOLID AWG PE45 WIRE BLUE "WATER" (500'/ROLL) 
130 2 6 A23G0-23 MJ RW GV OL L/ACC MUELLER GATE VALVE 
140 1 6 A2360-19 MJXF RW GV OL L/ACC 
150 1 A423 5-1/4VO HYD 4'6"B 6MJ 3W MUELLER 0/L NST RED W/ACC 423-500068 
160 3 #70 SHORT VLV BOX W/WTR LID 
170 1 6 MJ S/P SLEEVE I) CP Dl C153 
180 2 6 MJ 90 BEND{I) CP Dl C153 
190 1 6X6 MJXFL TEE (I) CP Dl C153 
20Q..._ 1 6 MJ CAP ill_ CP Dl C153 _ 
210 15 6 EBAA MEGALUG C900&1PS 2006PV RED 
220 15 6 MJ REG!:JLAR ACC SET L/GLAND (LESS GLANO_l_ 
230 1 6X1/8 FLG ACC RR FF 
240 5 6 BELL RESTR F/C900 EBAA 1606 
250 1 317-069015-00~C D/S SAD EPOXY W/SS STRAPS 5.94-6.90 
260T 1 P25008N 2 B. CORP CCXPJCTS NO LEAD 
270 8 2X100 SDR9 CTS MUNICIPEX PE TUBING 
280 SOLD IN 100' ROLL MINIMUM 
290 1 P15428N 2 ADAPT PJCTSXMIP **NO LEAD** 
300 2 528707 2 CTS SS INSERT PE PJ 
310 1 B20283N 2 BALL CURB FIPXFIP W/PLN HEAD 1/4 TURN CHECK NO LEAD 

320 
330 PVC PIPE TERMS: ORDER BY 4-21-16, RELEASE BY 5-21-16, SHIP BY 5-21-16 

Units 

HD Supply Waterworks 
1000 Parkhill Dr 

Las Cruces, NM 88012 
Phone: 575-527-4229 

Fax: 575-527-1314 

Price 

2.81 
45.00 
26.50 
20.65 

953.33 
234.28 

Ext Price 

EA 2.62 
SEWER TOTAL 

FT 
RL 
FT 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
EA 
LF 

3.50 
45.00 

0.16 
506.04 
506.16 

1,709.45 
31.25 
41.00 
60.50_ 

101.00 
24.00 
26.27 ---

9.26 
10.32 
37.47 
59.66 

174.64 
11.20 

EA 53.62 
EA 6.11 

2,030.00 
45.00 

160.00 
~012.08 

506.16 
1,709.45 

93.75 
41.00 

121.00 
101.00 

24.00 ---
394.05 
138.90 

10.32 
187.35 

59.66 
174.64 

89.60 

EA 183.4:.._7--+--=--liilllMil""'"-: 
WATER TOTAL _ __,...._-=-----~ 

9,893.47 
0.00 

9,893.47 

54

54



WATERWORKS 

Bid Proposal for STEVENS- BARNES RV PARK 

CONSTRUCTORS INC 
Bid Date: 03/15/2016 05:00p.m. 

HD Supply Bid #: 65668 

Seq# Qty Description 

10 SEwER . 
20 520 
30 1 
40 1 
50 1 

10 C900 DR18 PVC PIPE GRN (G) MARKINGS PC235 
6X1000' DETECTO TAPE-SEWER 
10 MJ S/P SLEEVE C153 P401 (I) 
10 MJ CAP C153 P401 {I} -

60 3 10 MJ REGULAR_ ACC SET (I) 
48 11 X6' FIBERGLASS MANHOLE 70'" 1 

80 1 
90 2 

EJIW DOM R&C SAN SEWER 325# WATER TITE 00134283 
10 SDR35 WATERSTOP 

100 
110 
120 
130 
140 
150 
160 
170 
180 
190' 
200 

210 i 
220 
230 
240 l 

250 
260 
270 
280 
290 
300 
310 
320 

~ 
340 
350 

360 

WATER 
580 12 C900 DR18 PVC PIPE (G) MARKINGS PC235 
20_ 6 C900 DR18 PVC PIPE Gl MARKINGS PC235 
1 6X1000' DETECTO TAPE-WATER DT6BW 

1000 12GA SOLID AWG PE45 WIRE BLUE "WATER" (500'/ROLL) 
2 12 A2361-23 MJ RW GV OL L/ACC 
1 6 A2360-19 MJXF RW GV Ol L/ACC 
1 A423 5-1/4VO HYD 4'6"B 6Mf3W MUELLER 0/L NST RED W/ACC 423-500068 
3 #70 SHORTVLV BOX W/WTR LID 
.!_ 12 MJ 5/P 5LEEVEU) CP Dl C153 
2 12 MJ 90 BEND (11 CP Dl C153 

1 12X6 MJXFL TE!_~DI C153 -----~~ 
1 12 MJ CAP (I) CP Dl C153 

13 12 EBAA MEGALUG C9001PS 2012PV F/C900 PIPE ,RED 
13 12 MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLAND lLESS GLAND) 
2 6 EBAA MEGALUG C900&1PS 2006PV RED 
2 ~ MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLA~D (LESS GLAND} 
1 6X1/8 FLG ACC RR FF 
5 12 BELL RESTR F/C900 EBAA 1612 
1 317-132015-000 12X2CC D/S SAD EPOXY W/S5 STRAPS 12.75-13.20 
1 P25008N 2 B. CORP CCXPJCTS NO LEAD 
8 2X100 SDR9 CT5 MUNICIPEX PE TUBING 

SOLD IN 100' ROLL MINIMUM 
1 P15428N 2 ADAPT PJCT5XMIP **NO LEAD** 
2 528707 2 CTS SS INSERT PE PJ 
1 B20283N 2 BALL fURS FIPXFIP W/PLN HEAD 1/4 TURN CHECK NO LEAD 

370 PVC PIPE TERMS: ORDER BY 4-21-16, RELEASE BY 5-21-16, SHIP BY 5-21-16 

HD Supply Waterwor,ks 
1000 Parkhill Dr 

Las Cruces, NM 88012 

Phone: 575-527-4229 

Fax: 575-527-1314 

Units Price 

FT 8.92 
RL 45.00 
EA 342.00 
EA 242.50 
EA 30.91 
EA 953.33 
EA 234.28 
EA 3.07 

SEWER TOTAL 

Ext Price 

4,638_:~ 
45.00 

342.00 
242.50 

92.73 
953.33 
234.28 

6.14 
6,554.38 

FT 12.37 7,174.60 
FT 3.66 73.20 
RL 45.00 45.00 
FT 0.16 160.00 
EA 1 1,SSS.SS 3,111.16 
EA 495.15 495.15 
EA 1,709.45 1~709.45 I 

EA 31.25 93.75 
EA 106.34 106.34 
EA 183.90 367.80 
EA 228.1 228.78 

--+--
EA 73.66 73.66 
EA 77.25 1,004.25 
EA 14.52 _1~88. 76 ! 
EA 26.27 52.54 

EA ~9~.2~6~ ______ 18_.~5~ 
EA 10.32 1 - J9.32 I 
EA 115.88 579.40 
EA 91.48 91.48 I 

EA 174.64 174.64 
LF 11.20 89.60 

EA 53.62 
EA 6.11 
EA 183.47 
WATER TOTAL 

Sub Total 
Tax 

Total 

53.62 
12.22 

183.47 
16,097.71 

22,652.09 
0.00 

22,652.09 

55

55



CHECKLIST FOR INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT 
FQR0F~~¢~l.JSE.dNtV 

GENERAL PROGRAM CRITERIA AND REQillREMENTS: 

D Property and all qualifying public infrastructure is located within the City Limits. 
D Application is complete and estimates approved by the City Council. 
D The application was submitted concurrent with: 

o Preliminary plat 
o Building permit 
o Construction plans (because the subdivision was platted prior to adoption of the 

Subdivision Ordinance) 
D Subdivision is in .accordance with the City's Subdivision Regulations (Chapter 47 et. seq.), as 

amended, including: 
o Sketch Plan showing each phase of development 
o Preliminary Plat( s) for each phase of development 
o Final Plat( s) for each phase of development with dedication of infrastructure noted on the 

plat 
D Variances were not granted for this project. 
D Approved subdivision was recorded with the County Clerk. 
D Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement was executed by the City and applicant. 
D Requirements of the Reimbursement Agreement were complied with. 
D Actual costs do not exceed usual and customary infrastructure costs. 
D Items were not installed prior to application date. 
D Final invoices, with proof of payment (cancelled checks, evidence of wire transfer), are 

provided. 
D Third party payment is not requested. 
D Construction of qualifying public infrastructure began within 60-days of preliminary plat 

approval 
D Construction of qualifying public infrastructure was completed prior to approval of a fmal plat (if 

self fmanced) or within one year of final plat approval (if financed through a letter of credit). 
D This project: 

o Furthered City plans and policies 
o Focused on infill 
o Provide affordable housing (as determined by the NM Mortgage Finance Authority). 

The following ADDITIONAL REQUIRED INFORMATION was provided: 

D List of board of directors, executive directors, contractors and subcontractors that have a 
financial interest in the development or are affiliated with, or have a immediate family member 
(mother, father, sister, brother, grandmother, grandfather) affiliated with, the City of Carlsbad 

D Federal tax identification number 
D State tax identification number 
D City business registration number 
D Funding sources for the proposed development project including assistance being requested of, 

or provided by, the City or other governmental entity (e.g. land, fee waivers, direct funding, etc.) 

Page 6 of7 

56

56



0 A complete and specific description of the proposed development and infrastructure including, 
but not limited to: 

o Subdivision plats (sketch, preliminary, final) 
o Construction drawings 
o Utility requirements, including but not limited to electric, gas, and water 
o Solid and liquid waste disposal requirements 
o Infrastructure requirements 
o Regulatory compliance requirements (environmental assessments, historic preservation 

documents) 
o As-built construction drawings (at construction completion) 

0 A description of the proposed infrastructures long term benefit to the City 
0 Any other information necessary for the City to make a determination regarding the application 

for reimbursement 
D The tables on page 5 and 6 are complete 

Page 7 of7 

57

57



Agenda Item #9: Report Regarding Plats Approved Through Summary Review Process 

58

58



59

59



SCALE: 1" ; 60' ----

... 
iil 
"'"' ~~ 
'" ' -~ 

"'"' ~ 

1-
-"! 
8 ~I"' ~ ~ I': 
~ ~ 

SET WITNESS 

_ - - f-COR:EA 

I\ 

N 89' 48'22"E 

VIRGIE NESBIT 
271716 

~ -
"'. 
1-
o · 
"' a · 
~
('). 
;:::. 

233.00' 

-- ~l?ei'"EM 
TRACT "A" - - r;_.o 

1.931 ACRES 
GERALD & DIANE NESBIT 

30911119 & 10861~ 

-

g 
.; 
;;; 

~-
~N 
1il "' M~ 

SET WITNESS 
CORNER 

... 
iil 
~"' ., ;: 
'" ' -~ 

"'"' ~ 

--- - - ( 
0 60 120 

;;: s: I~ f:3 ' N 
~ ~ 
0 "' z ~ -. 

0 
z 

- - - - - - -I+- ---- - - - - -----..... ------

Ww 

181<: 
<') -. ~ . -I"''" N o 0 
... 0 <f) 

(/) -

I 
I 

t ~ ~~~-~~~~ 
FO 112" RBR Fl A. Q FO 1f2" RBR 
INAsPHT. . --- .....§~9"48'~''\'L.- - I --- ES!~RlVf!-- -'~ASPHT 

~
.01' FD. SPINDLE S 89'48'22"W FD. SPINDLE S 89' 21'26"W 123 04' FD SANDLE / ;z 

INASPHT. 110.02' INASPifT. (S89Q48'22"W 123.0()') INASPHT -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- - - -- -- -- -- --- -- -- -
N 89' 48'22"E BASIS OF BEARINGS 1979.83' ' 

ALBRIGHT, MARVIN 
5401759 

APPROVAL BY THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION, OR ITS DESIGNEE, OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, EDDY COUNTY, 
NEW MEXICO ON THIS 

~ DAY OF Ot:/..? ;- ' 2016. 

EDDY COUNTY APPROVAL 

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE EDDY COUNTY BOARD 
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OR AGENT 

THIS DAY OF 2016. 

BY: ATTEST: 1 ~.-1A1s .#'~ ~~ ~A~G~E~N~T~-------- C~O~U~N~TY~C~L~E~R~K------

co??""~EsiGNI± 7 • 7 

VICINITY MAP N.T.S. 
/ SITE 

FIESTA DR. 

WOOD AVE. 

~ 
~ , 

CENTER AVE " 

OWNERS STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT: 

The platting shown hereon, including the granting of easements as shown, is wrth the free 
consent and accordance with the wishes and desires of the undersigned owner(s) and 
proprietor(s) thereof. The undersigned owner(s) and proprietor(s) do hereby freely consent 
to all the foregoing and do represent themselves that I am so authorized to act. the property 
described hereon lies within the planning and platting jurisdiction of Eddy County and 
Carlsbad Extraterritorial, Eddy County, NM. 

My commission 
Notary 

OFFICIAL SEAL 

My CommisSion 

NESBIT REPLAT 

WITHIN THE E112 NW114 SE114 
WITHIN SECTION 8, T22S, R27E, N.M.P.M. 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
OCTOBER, 2016 

DESCRIPTION 

A CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND COMPRISING OF A PARCEL SHOWN ON THE "NESBIT SUBDIVISION" SAID 
PLAT FILED FOR RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE EDDY COUNTY CLERK ON MARCH 4, 1998 IN 
CABINET A SLIDE 561-1; ALSO COMPRISING OF A PARCEL OF LAND SHOWN ON THE "NESBIT 
SUBDIVISION NO. 2" SAID PLAT FILED FOR RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE EDDY COUNTY CLERK 
ON FEBRUARY 12, 20081N CABINET 4 SLIDE 1026-1 . 

SAID PARCELS TO BE REPLATTED AS SHOWN HEREON INTO ONE TRACT OF LAND AND NOW TO 
BE KNOWN AS TRACT "A" OF THE "NESBIT REPLAT', EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, ALONG WITH 
THE FILLING DATE AND PLAT CABINET AND SLIDE NUMBER OF THIS PLAT . 

CLAIM OF EXEMPTION: 

THE HEREON DESCRIBED DIVISION IS EXEMPT FROM THE STATE SUBDIVISION ACT, AND THE COUNTY 
SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE PER THE EDDY COUNTY CLAIM OF SUBDIVISION EXEMPTION NO. 7, WHICH 
STATES: '1he division of land resulting only in the a~eration of parcel boundaries where parcels are a~ered 
for the purpose of increasing or reducing the size of contiguous parcels and where the number of parcels is 
not increased." 

SURVEY NOTES: 

1. Unless otherwise noted all boundary stakes are set 518" rebar stakes with plastic I. D. caps impressed 
"MDN 17821". 
2. Date of field survey October 17, 2016. 
3. Basis of bearings is plat of record filed in Cabinet 4, Slide 1026-1 based on found monumentation as shown 
hereon. Distances are Ground. 
4. The property shown hereon is subject to all Easements, Conditions, Restrictions and Reservations of 
record or in existence. 
5. Tract A is shown within a Special Flood Hazard Area Flood Zone A, as shown on F.E.M.A., F.I.R.M. map number 
35015C1065D effective June 4, 2010. 
6. Coarse data in parenthesis is from referenced Warranty Deed of record or Plat of record, when field measeured 
data to found manu mentation differ by an amount exceeding accuracy prescribed by the Minimum Standards for 
Land Surveyors in New Mexico. 
7. File name: NESBIT.ZAK 

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE: 

I, Matthew D. Norman, a New Mexico registered Professional Land Surveyor, certify that I conducted 
and am responsible for this survey, that this survey is true and correct to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, and that this _survey and plat meet the Minimum Standards for Surveying in New Mexico. 

1 0- 1 1~1 
Matthew D. Norman, P.S. 17821 Date 

FILING AND RECORDING 

FILED FOR RECORD IN THE EDDY COUNTY CLERKS OFFICE ON THE __ DAY OF 2016, 

AT A.M. , P.M , CABINET SLIDE. ___ _ 

COUNTY CLERK DEPUTY 

ENTITLEMENT OF EXEMPTION FILED ON 

THE DAY OF 2016 IN BOOK PAGE OF THE OFFICIAL 
RECORDS OF EDDY COUNTY 

INDEXING INFORMATION FOR THE COUNTY CLERK 

ASSESSED OWNER(s): GERALD & DIANE NESBIT 
SECTION(S): SECTION 8, T22S, R27E, N.M.P.M. 
ACREAGE: TR A ; 1.931 ACRES J\AD.N 

!::.URVE:VING LLC 
n04 ELGIN RD. 

CARLSBAD. NM 88220 
(575) 234-3505 

60

60



BACA LINE ADJUSTMENT BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SOUTHERN SKY UNIT 2 SUBDI VISION, FILED IN CABINET 1, SLIDE 165- 2, OF THE MAPPING RECORDS FOR EDDY 
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO; THEN S01'35'26 "E, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF CALLED SUBDIVISION, FOR 398.96 FEET; THEN THRU A CURVE TO THE LEFT FOR 

A RESURVEY OF TRACT A AND TRACT B OF THE BACA LAND DIVISION 
(CAB 6 SLIDE 426 - 1) , LYING IN SECTION 19 , TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, 
RANGE 27, N.M.P.M., EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, IN WHICH THE 
PERIMETER OF TRACTS Al, A2, Bl & B2 ARE MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

28.09 FEET (RAD=470. 78 FEET), WITH A CHORD THAT BEARS S89'39'35"E FOR 28.12 FEET; THEN N88'23'19"E, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SOUTHERN SKY 
UNIT 1, FOR 445.00 FEET, TO THE WEST LINE OF AN ALLEY; THEN N01'35'01"W, ALONG THE SAID WEST LINE, FOR M=399.60 (REC=399.80 FEET), TO THE 
SOUTH LINE OF W. ROSE STREET; THEN S88'25'36"W. ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF ROSE STREET, FOR 473.15 FEET, BACK TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 4.34 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

· - · · - · · -r 
FOUND #4 JO' 

PW REBAR, NO CAP 

}Ll 
"''- ~~. 5 ~~5 0>· 0 1.0 
'- ~--< ~g--< --i Ol ~ 

~~ 
~ "'""' lf) ..,"' 
<D '>JO .,~ I') . 

~ 

0 
(/) 

CD 
~ 
X 

- -~-1~ 
c ;;; 
-l ~01 
~ .... ,:."l 

::r:: "' I~ 
fTl ~ 
:;;o 1=<1 

z '<:: 
"" ~ ::0 

(f) ~ I:JE --i 

/\: fT1 

· - ·· - · · - · · - ·· - · · - ·· - · · su· #·4- · · - ·· - ·· - ·· 

w ROSE STREET REBAR, 
NO CAP . S88"25'J6"W 

4 73. 15' r 
r 

108.96' 146.28' 
108.95' 108.96' 

I }Ll }Ll }Ll I 
I 0 OJ '<!-
I ~ !:" _C'-.1 

lf) lf) I lf) 

I I') I') I') . . . 
I ~ ~ ~ 

I 0 0 0 
I (/) (/) (/) 

I§ 
I"' ,a 
I""' 
I~ 
I ill 
I"' 
I§ .,..:>,. .,..:>,. 
I .,..:>,. ~ "1J .,..:>,. I "1J "1J I 

~ """~ ~ 
~ 

I -:>.,..:>,. ~.,..:>,. 
I ~.,..:>,. 0 (.):> ~.,..:>,. I 0 

0 
.l> 

0 I 0 7'7" 7'7, 
0 I 7~ ~ -> 

FOUND #4 
REBAR NO 

~ 
0 
OJ 
()) 
()) 
I') 

II 
0::: 
'-....--

. 
0 
1.0 
()) 
()) 
I') 

II 
~ 

~ -< "" 7 ~ I ;._:.. 1-----------------
)> 

~ L r---- - ------- UNE BEINGADJUSW - - -::0 

(f) "' 
(11 HAMIL TO ROOFING COMPANY I c ::j TERI?Y L BACA .t ANDREW NESTING l<ofS 1 29/788 fT1 

CD "' 0 I . ,4.J . . . 
< 1.0 lf) I'- 0 
- ()) _J;? OJ I'- I'-
(f) r OJ ~<v- iu ()) - ()) ()) 

0 ()) • - o,K; ()) ()) ()) 
I') o, ·a . I') I') z i}?~~!i:( I') 

I 
I IIC\J'I-

I II __, II I/ 
c 

;r~ z I SET #4 -
\ 

REBAR, -l NO CAP 146.23' 
80.87 ' 108.96' 108.93' 

N 
' " ' 445.00' 

F~~~~ {;, FOUND 4 
. 

REBAR ·No 
LOT 4 LOT 3 LOT 2 

2 c ~p LOT 1 CAP LOT 6 LOT 5 
LOT 

# N88 23 19 E 20 ALLEY 

BLO c K 1 BLOCK 3 
s )UTHERN SKY SUE DIVISION UNIT 1 

NOTES AND OBSERVATIONS: 
1. WATER, SEWER, GAS, AND ELECTRIC ARE IN THE ALLEYS TO THE EAST OF AND BEHIND THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. 

2. THERE ARE NO SIDEWALKS AROUND THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. 

3. THE ROAD DOES NOT HAVE CURB AND GUTTER, AND THERE 1$ ASPHALT IN THE ROADWAY. 

4. BUILDING SETBACKS ARE AS PER CITY OF CARLSBAD ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 
FRONT- .30 FEET 

SIDE - 5-7.5 FEET 
REAR - 10 FEET 

5. LOTS SIZES ARE LOT A2, B1, & B2-±1.00 ACRES. AND LOT A1 - ±1 . .34 ACRES. 

6. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY LIES IN THE CITY LIMITS OF CARLSBAD. 

BASIS OF BEARINGS AND DISTANCES: 
1. BEARING$ SHOWN HEREON ARE REFERENCED TO THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83), NEW MEXICO 
EAST ZONE (NM ZONE 3001). 

2. THE COMBINED FACTOR OF 0.999769368 IS FOR THIS SURVEY. 

J. AREAS AND DISTANCES ARE SURFACE MEASUREMENT$. THE DISTANCES ARE MEASURED IN THE US SURVEY 
FOOT. 

4. ALL MEASUREMENTS WERE MADE ON AUGUST 18, 2015. 

LOT 1 

: 

. 
. 

ou D #4 
E R, NO 

CAP 
R 

\ 

60 

I L 

POUND #4 18 
.. _ .. _ R.EBAR,_ ~-

NO CAP 19 

<> 
0 

0 

LECEND 
CORNER FOUND 
AS NOTED 

SET tU REBAR. 
CAP 20251 

QUARTER CORNER 

NEir d: OLD 
EASEJIENTS 

LAND LINE 

60 

Scale 1 " = 60' 

120 

I 
APPROVAL BY THE CITY PLANN/NC CONNISS/ON 

THIS I$ TO CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION, OR ITS DESIGNEE, OF THE CITY 
OF CARLSBtp. COUNTY OF EDDY7 STAT£ OF NEW MEXICO ON 
THIS 12 DAY OF ~d-··kc , 20 /6 . 

~ ,~j)~ 
COM'fiSJD£SiGEE 

7 

~X/.k..;.... 
HAMILtiROOFING COMPANY 

RANDY HEINE, PRESIDANT OF 
HAMILTON ROOFING COMPANY 

OWNERS STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT 

STATE oF Af-< cu ,\}.l' y;/CC > : 
- 11 :SS 

COUNTY OF }:_ ...>.""'-~ : 
THE ABOVE SIGNED BEl G FIRST DULY SWORN ON OATH, STATE: 
AS THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS WE HA \IE OF OUR OWN FREE ~Ll. AND 
CONSENT CAUSED THIS PLAT ~TH ITS TRACTS TO BE PLATTED. 
THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED ON THIS PtA T UES ~THIN THE PLA T71NG 
JURISDICTION OF: CTTY OF CA R[SBA D 
SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME 

THIS~ DAY OF {9Cfc i.J....c{ 2D I C, ~-- ·--- _ 

BY \i<.a 1, ~ (-f.,ua , lr&n. I f·~~.~;:·"i;., 011 ICIM SHl l 
~ _ _..., h; · · "'J Suzan M. l')catt I 0 '•,;~ .;ft NOlARY PIIBLIC 
~ {!A. . ..,,,., STATE Of NEW MEX!CO 

OTARY" UBUC J 

/~ 

==~~~::~ ~~·~-~~~~~ 
A~ W NESTING 

( OWNERS STA" ENT AND AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF~ • ? ~'CQ 
r,--.,...... ._ D...~ ss 

COUNTY OF ~u)'"i::~ ~ 
THE ABOVE SIGNED BEING FIRST DULY SWORN ON OATH, STATE: 
AS THE OWNERS AND PROPRIETORS WE HAVE OF OUR OWN FREE ~LL AND 
CONSENT CAUSED THIS PLAT ~TH ITS TRACTS TO BE PLATTED. 
THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED ON THIS PLAT LIES ~THIN THE PLAT71NG 
JURISDICTION OF: CfTY OF CA Rl.SBA D 
SUBSCRIBED, SWORN TO AND ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME 

THlsA DAY OF~'o?e 2oM 

B~~.N~eevl. fu:g 
~~~J-~-~ 

~C?r 
NOTARY PUBLIC ., _;:;:;p 

I, MELVIN R. PYEATT, JR. , A NEW MEXICO REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL 
SURVEYOR, CERTIFY THAT I AM RESPONSIBlE FOR THIS SURVEY, AND 
THAT THIS SURVEY IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY 
KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF. THIS SURVEY AND PLAT MEET THE MINIMUM 
STANDARDS FOR SURVEYING IN NEW MEXICO. 

SEC. 19 T22S R27E N.M.P.M. 
SUBDIVISION: BACA LINE ADJUSTMENT 
OWNER: HAMIL TON ROOFING COMPANY 

ANDREW NESTING 
THIS __ DAY OF 20_A.D. TERRY BACA 

AT O'CLOCK _ .M. 
CITY: CARLSBAD 
COUNTY: EDDY 

CABINET SLJDE ---~ STATE: NEW MEXICO 
ROBIN VAN NATTA-COUNTY CLERK DATE: AUGUST JD 2016 

ACCESS: YES 
BY DEPUTY AREA: ::1::4.J4 ACRES 

61

61



Agenda Item #10: Adjourn 

62

62




